AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
January 14, 2014
5:00 pm
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118

This meeting will be available for videoconferencing at Downieville School, Downieville, CA.
In the case of a fechnological difficuity at either school site, videoconferencing will not be available.

Any individual who requires disability-related accornmodations or modifications including auxiliary aids and services in

A

m o o O

order to participate in the Board meeting should contact the Superintendent or designee in writing.

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed fo the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will he made
available at the Sierra County Board of Education, 109 Beckwith Road, Room 3, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with the online

agenda at hito./fvww.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org (Government Code 54957.5)

CALL TO ORDER
(Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.)

ROLL CALL

FLAG SALUTE

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION

At this time, the meeting opens for any public comments regarding the Closed Session
items.

CLOSED SESSION

The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant and Rose Asquith, Business
Manager will move into Closed Session to discuss the following items:

1. Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators
Agency Negotiator for the Board: Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent
Employee Organizations: Represented Employees: SPTA and Classified
Unrepresented Employees: Confidential, Administration and Management

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

REPORT OUT

ADJOURN FOR BREAK

6 pm - RECONVENE

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Sierra County Office of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Audit Presentation by Clay Singleton, CPA, of SingletonAuman PC



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Agenda
January 14, 2014

2. Superintendent’s Report
a. California Department of Education Response to Tentative Agreements

3. Business Report
a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/13 to 12/31/13**

4, Staff Reporis (5 minutes)

5. SPTA Report (5 minutes)

6. Board Members' Report (5 minutes)

7. Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement Public Hearing™*
This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing board
on the Colfective Bargaining Agreements listed on this Agenda as ftems J, 1, 1314-067
through 1314-071

8. Public Comment — This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the
governing board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing
board whether or not it is listed on the agenda. Five minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a
maximum of twenty minutes to each subject matter. (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322;
Government Code 54854.3)
a. Current location
b. Videoconference location

1. CONSENT CALENDAR

1.

Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held December 10, 2013**

2. Approval of bill warrants for month of December 2013**

3. Approval of Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for quarter ending

4.

December 2013. It is required per Education Code 35186 section (d) that a school
district shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all complaints on
a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the governing board of
the school district. No complaints regarding textbooks and instructional materials,
teacher vacancy or misassignment or conditions of facilities were filed with Sierra
County Office of Education during the quarter ending December 2013.

Approval of modifications of Superintendent's Goals for 2013-2014 school year™

J. ACTION ITEMS

1.

New Business

1314-067 Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2012-2013 school year, Sierra-Plumas

Teachers' Association**

1314-068 Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Sierra-Plumas

Classified Employees’ Association™

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
AGENDA

2



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Agenda
January 14, 2014

1314-069

1314-070

1314-071

1314-072

1314-073

1314-074

1314-075

Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Confidential
Employees™ :

Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Administrative
Employees**

Approval of Completion of Bargaining, 2013-2014 school year, Management
Employees™

Acceptance of Financial Audit for 2012- 2013** (Asquith)

Discussion on appropriate FTE division for County and District Superintendent’s
current year

Approval of Revision of Board Policy 3513.3, Tobacco Free Schools** (Grant)

Review and Approval of Administrative Regulation and Board Policy 6145, Extra
Curricular and Co-curricular Activities per Education Code §35160.5™ (Grant)

K. ADVANCED PLANNING

1.

Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on February 11, 2014, at Downieville
School, 130 Schooi Street, Downieville CA, beginning with Closed Session, as
needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm. '

Suggested Agenda ltems
a.
b.
C.

L. ADJOURNMENT

M, M- A

Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent

*** prior month handout
** enclosed
* handout

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
AGENDA

3



Fiscal01a

Account Object Summary-Balance

Balances through December Fiscal Year 2012/13

Object Description 'L\Bduc:’ps:g:’ R;::;;z? Encumbered Expenditure g‘::::::
Fund 01 - Gen Fund

1100 Teachers Salaries 165,966.00 169,479.00 69,555.68 99,923.32
1120 Certificated Substitutes 4,833.00 4,833.00 1,200.00 3,633.00
1200 Certificated Pupil Support Ser 59,350.00 61,714.00 23,154.80 38,559.20
1300 Certificated Supervisor Admini 65,192.00 65,192.00 32,595.90 32,596.10

Total for Object 1000 295,341.00 301,218.00 .00 126,506.38 174,711.62
2100 Instructional Aides' Salaries 108,737.00 138,147.00 40,531.23 97,615.77
2120 Classified Substitutes 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
2200 Classified Support Salaries 4,888.00 4,888.00 2,562.94 2,325.06
2300 Classified Supervisors' Admini 100,802.00 100,922.00 50,235.00 50,687.00
2400 Clerical Technical Office Staf 113,746.00 113,696.00 55,879.58 57,816.42
2900 Other Classified Salaries 6,144.00 6,208.00 1,740.00 4,468.00

Total for Object 2000 335,317.00 364,861.00 .00 150,948.75 213,912.25
3101 STRS Certificated Positions 24,366.00 25,256.00 10,355.86 14,900.14
3102 STRS Classified Positions 300.00 300.00 120.00 180.00
3202 PERS Classified Positions 50,903.00 51,504.00 22,935.25 28,568.75
3302 OASDI Classified Positions 19,595.00 21,896.00 9,055.04 12,840.96
3311 Medicare Certificated Position 4,202.00 4,281.00 1,892.41 2,388.59
3312 Medicare Classified Positions 4,639.00 5,179.00 2,140.64 3,038.36
3401 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert 75,400.00 75,996.00 29,013.58 46,982.42
3402 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas 87,800.00 77,469.00 38,879.45 38,589.55
3501 SUI Certificated 3,249.00 3,305.00 2,105.93 1,199.07
3502 SUI Classified 3,666.00 3,889.00 1,653.81 2,235.19
3601 Workers' Compensation Certific 8,448.00 8,405.00 3,611.00 4,794.00
3602 Workers' Compensation Classifi 9,338.00 10,402.00 100.60 4,185.80 6,115.60
3701 OPERB, Allocated Certificated 27,730.00 21,251.00 6,479.22 14,771.78
3802 PERS Reduction Recapture 5,681.00 5,107.00 2,189.38 2,917.62
3901 Golden Handshake 12,958.00 12,958.00

Total for Object 3000 325,317.00 327,198.00 100.60 134,617.37 192,480.03
4100 Approved Textbooks Core Curric 532.00 532.00 293.13 238.87
4200 Library and Reference Material 4,250.00 7,062.00 1,580.05 2,126.75 3,355.20
4300 Materials and Supplies 14,275.00 14,201.00 415.41 4,054.64 9,730.95
4320 Custodial Supplies 1,300.00 1,300.00 196.83 724.90 378.27
4330 Office Supplies 2,000.00 2,000.00 348.16 1,651.84
4350 Vehicle Upkeep 7,000.00 7,000.00 992.74 790.83 5,216.43

Total for Object 4000 29,357.00 32,095.00 3,185.03 8,338.41 20,571.56

Selection  Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 6, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N,
Restricted Accts? =Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

ESCAPE
Page 1 of 2

001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:19AM



http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3802
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350

Fiscal01a

Balances through December

Fiscal Year 2012/13

Account Object Summary-Balance

Object Description 'L\Bduc:’ps:g:’ R;::;;z? Encumbered Expenditure g‘::::::
Fund 01 - Gen Fund (continued)

5100 Subagreements for Services 50,000.00 50,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
5200 Travel and Conference 26,031.00 23,357.00 2,453.93 5,282.38 15,620.69
5300 Dues and Membership 16,321.00 16,321.00 2,100.00 7,114.00 7,107.00
5400 Insurance 10,200.00 10,200.00 10,187.00 13.00
5500 Operation Housekeeping Service 10,000.00 10,000.00 860.49 1,068.51 8,071.00
5600 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc 3,100.00 3,100.00 317.37 409.37 2,373.26
5800 Professional Consulting 9,000.00 9,000.00 4,400.00 3,200.00 1,400.00
5801 Legal Services 35,000.00 35,000.00 235.00 765.00 34,000.00
5803 Legal Publications 500.00 500.00 200.00 12.93 287.07
5805 Personnel Expense 700.00 700.00 250.00 450.00
5806 Negotiations 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
5808 Other Services & Fees 1,500.00 1,500.00 698.97 511.31 289.72
5810 Contracted Services 196,694.00 218,225.00 72,149.32 89,325.21 56,750.47
5899 SPJUSD to Reimburse 1,636.34 417.75 2,054.09-
5900 Communications 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Total for Object 5000 363,046.00 381,903.00 110,301.42 118,293.46 153,308.12

7110 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre 133,586.00 137,961.00 3,972.00 133,989.00
7141 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe 99,264.00 131,950.00 97,686.77 19,004.34 15,258.89
7310 Direct Support/Indirect Costs .00
Total for Object 7000 232,850.00 269,911.00 97,686.77 22,976.34 149,247.89

Total for Expense accounts 1,581,228.00 1,677,186.00 211,273.82 561,680.71 904,231.47

Total for Org 001, Fund 01 and Expense accounts 1,581,228.00 1,677,186.00 211,273.82 561,680.71 904,231.47

Selection  Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 6, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, ESCAPE l:l“!“l!

Restricted Accts? =Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N) Page 2 of 2

001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:19AM


http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=64804&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310

Sierra County Office of Education
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement
January 14, 2014

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 3547.5 and AB 1200
the Superintendent and Chief Business Official of Sierra County Office of Education
(County} and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (District) hereby certify that the
District/County can meet the cost incurred under the 2013-14 bargaining agreements
offset by assumption stated in the 2013-2014 First Interim. The First Interim was
adopted by the Governing Boards at the December 10, 2013, board meeting.

The agreements are between the District/County and the bargaining units listed below:

1. Sierra-Plumas Teachers® Association

2. Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees® Association

3. Confidential Employees

4. Administrative Employees

5. Management Employees

Sierra COE FY 2013-2014 FY 2014-2015 FY 2015-2016

4.5% Salary Inc 2% Salary Inc

Salary $28,500 $34,900 $35,100
Statutory Benefits $ 3,420 $ 4,200 $ 4,215
Total $31,920 $39,100 $39,315

Sierra-Plumas

FY 2013-2014
4.5% Salary Inc

FY 2014-2015
2% Salary Inc

FY 2015-2016

Salary $99,000 $142,000 $151,000
Statutory Benefits $11,800 $ 17,000 $ 18,000
Total $110,800 $157,900 $169,000
Dore gt oo
Rose Asqhith, Business Manager Ddte
A M i / 9 L204¢
Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent Date

C:\UsersiL.ocal Administrato’\DecumentsiNegotiations\2013-14Negotiations\Public Disclosure Stmt SCOE & SPIJUSD Jan. 2014.docx




MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
December 10, 2013
Downieville School, Downieville, California
This meeting was videoconferenced to Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4,
Loyalton, CA 96118

A. CALL TO ORDER
President ALLEN WRIGHT called the meeting to order at 5:04 pm.
B. ROLL CALL
PRESENT: Mr. Allen Wright, President
Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President
Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk
Mr. Tim Driscoll, Member
Mr. Mike Moore, Member
ABSENT: None
VACANT: None
C. FLAG SALUTE
D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MOORE/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

E. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION
There was no comment

F. CLOSED SESSION began at 5:06 pm.
MOORE/HALL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant and Rose Asquith, Business Manager moved
into Closed Session to discuss the following items:

1. Government Code §54957.6, Superintendent Mid-Year Evaluation
2. Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators
Agency Negotiator for the Board: Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent
Employee Organizations: Represented Employees: SPTA
Classified Unrepresented Employees: Confidential and Management
G. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 5:56 pm.
ADJOURNED FOR BREAK
REPORT OUT

1. Superintendent was given direction to proceed with negotiated settlement with SPTA and
Classified Employees

SCOE
Minutes



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
December 10, 2013

2. The Board evaluated Dr. Grant's mid-year performance.

6:07 pm - RECONVENE the Sierra County Board of Education Meeting

H. BOARD ORGANIZATION
ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2014

MOORE proposed that the Board retain the same officers as in 2013:
1. President — Allen Wright

2. Vice President — Sharon Dryden

3. Clerk — Patty Hall

HALL/DRYDEN
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Presentation by Kevin Nolen, CRM Group,
Mr. Nolen gave a presentation demonstrating the damage, reconstruction process and
costs of the Loyalton High School Parking Lot. Estimated Cost: $175,000. The
Board asked that Mr. Nolen propose options in January.
Dr. Grant mentioned the LHS Track Project. The District is gathering schematics and
construction options.

2. Superintendent’s Report

a.

b.

Notice of resignation from Anne Reugebrink, Loyalton High School Instructional
Aide, effective November 29, 2013

Notice of resignation from Rebekah Munoz, Loyalton Elementary Instructional
Aide, effective November 15, 2013

Capital Services Region (CSR) Meeting/California County Superintendents
Educational Services Association (CCSESA) — Dr. Grant reported that the focus
of the latest CSR meeting included:

-CALMAPP, the new statewide assessment system, which requires local
educational agencies (LEAS) to participate in the spring 2014 Smarter Balanced
Field Test.

-LCAP — Mandated plan that County and District develops showing how funds
will be spent to provide high-quality education by setting goals in eight specific
areas including student achievement, safety and engagement.

-Updates from other Counties, FCMAT, Committee reports, Legislative action,
Secure Rural Schools

Business Report

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/13 to 11/30/13
There was no comment or questions
b. Correspondence from SingletonAuman, PC
c. Business Offices will be closed December 23, 2013, through January 1, 2014

SCOE
Minutes



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
December 10, 2013

4. Staff Reports (5 minutes)
Covered in the Superintendent's Report

5. SPTA Report (5 minutes)
There was none

6. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes)
There were none

7. Public Comment — Thisis an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing
board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or
not it is listed on the agenda. Five minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty minutes
to each subject matter. (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3)

a.  Current location - None
b.  Videoconference location - None

J. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held November 12, 2013
2. Approval of bill warrants for month of November 2013
MSCU/DRYDEN/HALL

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

K. ACTION ITEMS

1. OLD BUSINESS

1314-059 Administrative Regulation 4361.2 (Management), Personal Leave, revision
MOORE/DRISCOLL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

2. NEW BUSINESS

1314-060 Approval of 2014 Sierra County Board of Education/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified
ereviosiy 10y SChool District meeting calendar

MOORE/HALL

AYES: 5 NOES: 0

1314-061 Adoption of 2013-2014 Budget and Criteria & Standards Report and First Interim
Actuals as of October 31, 2013
Ms. Asquith explained that these reports are built on the tentative agreements that were
given the superintendent for negotiation purposes
MOORE/DRYDEN
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

1314-062 Board Policy 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan

SCOE 3
Minutes


http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131393/9
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/145075/9

Sierra County Board of Education

Regular Meeting Minutes

December 10, 2013

1314-063 Administrative Regulation 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan,
1314-064 Board Policy 0500, Accountability

1314-065 Board Policy 3100, Budget

1314-066 Administrative Regulation 3100, Budget

1314-067 Board Policy 3110, Transfer of Funds

DRYDEN motioned to adopt 1314-062 through 1314-067 simultaneously. HALL seconded.
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

L. ADVANCED PLANNING
Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on January 14, 2014, at Sierra County Office of Education,
109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118, beginning with Closed Session as needed at 5 pm and the
Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm.

Suggested Agenda ltems

a. Superintendent Division of Work Hours
b. Negotiations

M. ADJOURNMENT
Adjourned at 7:03 pm.

HALL/DRISCOLL
AYES: 5 NOES: 0

Patty Hall, Clerk Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent

4 SCOE
Minutes



ReqPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 12/01/2013 through 12/31/2013

Check Fund Expensed Check
Check Number . Pay to the Order of Object NI NI
00013852 12/11/2013  HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 11.00
00013853 12/11/2013  INLAND SUPPLY 01-4320 236.49
00013854 12/11/2013  LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 210.05
00013855 12/11/2013 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 2,212.00
01-5810 588.00 2,800.00
00013856 12/11/2013 PLACER COUNTY SELPA 01-5200 195.00
00013857 12/11/2013  SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 58.76
00013858 12/11/2013  TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE 01-9535 3,158.00
GROUP
76-9576 12,089.10 15,247.10
00013859 12/11/2013 VOYAGER 01-4350 503.50
01-5899 173.36 676.86
00013860 12/26/2013 ROSE ASQUITH 01-5200 34.27
01-5899 102.81 137.08
00013861 12/26/2013 MERRILL GRANT 01-5200 93.71
00013862 12/26/2013 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 2,522.00
01-5810 678.00 3,200.00
00013863 12/26/2013 MARLENE MONGOLO 01-5200 534.72
00013864 12/26/2013 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 28.25
00013865 12/26/2013 NORTHEASTERN JOINT POWERS 76-9571 4,652.25
AUTHORITY
00013866 12/26/2013 READ NATURALLY 01-4300 25.30
00013867 12/26/2013  U.S. BANK 01-4300 261.20
01-5200 579.63-
01-5899 426.39 107.96
00013868 12/26/2013  ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 27.97
Total Number of Checks 17 28,242.50
Fund Summary
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 County School Service Fund 16 11,501.15
76 Payroll Clearing 2 16,741.35
Total Number of Checks 17 28,242.50
Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability .00
Net (Check Amount) 28,242.50
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization M
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 1

001 - Sierra County Office of Education Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 7 2014 8:20AM



CERTIFICATED COMPLETION OF BARGAINING



AG

REEMENT

between the

SIERRA-PLUMAS TEACHERS’ ASSOCIATION (S-PTA)

and the

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD

and the

SIERRA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Per attachment dated December 6, 20

13.

Nothing shall preclude the parties from meeting and negotiating by mutual consent.

Accepted and Ratified
For the Certificated Employees:

Accepted and Adopted
For the Employer:

Pat Doyle, Co-President, S-PTA Date

Joanne Nunes, Co-President, S-PTA Date

Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D, Superintendent Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierra County Office of Education

Michael Moore, President Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District Governing Board

Date presented to the Governing Board:

Date adopted by the Governing Board:

Allen Wright, President Date
Sierra County Board of Education

z: Negotiations/ 2013-14 Negotiations/Certificated Completion of Bargaining

Negotiations: CERTIFICATED (S-PTA) COMPLETION OF BARGAINING 2013-2014  Page 1



Tentative Agreement
between the

Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association
and the

Slerra Plumas Joint Unified School District
December 6, 2013

The Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association (“SPTA” or “Association”) and the Sierra Plumas Joint
Unified School District (“District”) aré parties to a collective bargaining agreement which
expires on June 30, 2015. The parties have reached agreement as follows:

1. Compensation
Article 12 — Salary

The parties agree to increase the salary schedule by atotal of six and a half percent (6 5%). The
increase shall take place as follows:

A Effectlve July 1, 2013, the District shall increase each cell of fhe 2012/13 salary schedule by four
and a half percent (4.5%). Retro checks shall be issued for unit members employed on the date of
- ratification of this Agreement and shall be issued with the January 2014 payroll :

Effective July 1, 2014, the District shall increase each cell of the 2013/14 salary schedule by an
additional two percent (2%) for a total of six and a half percent (6.5%) per negotiated agreement
for 2013/1 4.

This shall fully and finally complete negotiations through June 30, 2013.
Per Article 16 (Duration of Agreement) 16.2 of the collective bargaining agreement, “For 2013-

14 and 2014-15 the parties agree to open Article 11(Health Benefits), Article 12 (Sa]ary) plus
two articles of each party’s choosing.” _

For the Sierra-Plumas | For the Sierra-Plumas Joint
Teachers Associati : WOOI District

. Patrick Deyle — 7 , ' ~ Dr. Merrill Grant
SPTA President SPJIUSD Superintendent

/Z//a/ff’-» /2—/0/3

Date /7 Date




CLASSIFIED COMPLETION OF BARGAINING



AGREEMENT
between the
SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION (S-PCEA)
and the
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD
and the
SIERRA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

December 19, 2013

The Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees’ Association (“SPCEA” or “Employee”) and the
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (“District’ or “Employer”) and the Sierra
County Superintendent of Schools (“County” or “Employer”) are parties to a collective
bargaining agreement which expires June 30, 2013. The parties would like to reach an
agreement for the 2013-2014 fiscal year and propose the following:

1. Compensation: Article Vi
The parties agree to increase the salary schedule by a fotal of six and a half
percent (6.5%). The increase shall take place as follows:

Effective July 1, 2013, the District and County shall increase each celi of
the current 2012-2013 salary schedule by four and a half percent (4.5%) for all
employees currently in active work stafus. Retroactive checks shall be issued for
unit members employed on the date of the ratification of this Agreement and shall
be issued with the January 2014 payroll.

Effective July 1, 2014, the District and County shall increase each cell of
the 2013-2014 salary schedule by an additional two percent (2%) for a total of six
and a half percent (6.5%) per 2013-2014 negotiated Agreement

2. HEALTH BENEFITS Article lll

The parties agree that there will be no increase in Employer contribution toward
health and welfare benefits.

3. MOBILE/CELLULAR TELEPHONE REIMBURSEMENT

The parties agree that the District and County will reimburse Employees of the
bargaining unit a telephone allowance of $25.00 per month for personal cellular
telephone expense when it is necessary for the Employee to consistently use
the communication device to perform the duties and assignments of his/her

w

Negotiations: Classified 2013-2014 Completion of Bargaining, January 14, 2014




position. The telephone allowance is considered taxable income for the
Employee.

4. VACATION PAY Article IV

The parties agree that earned vacation shall not become a vested right until
completion of the initial six months of employment. (Ed Code 45197)

The Employee may be granted vacation during the school year even though not
earned at the time the vacation is taken.

If an Employee is terminated and had been granted vacation which was not yet
earned at the time of termination of his services, the employer shall deduct from
the Employee's final pay-check the full amount of salary which was paid for
such unearned days of vacation taken.

Upon separation from service, the Employee shall be entitled to lump-sum
compensation for all eamed and unused vacation, except that Employees who
have not completed six months of employment in regular status shall not be
entitled fo such compensation.

All new Employees, effective the date of the ratification of this Agreement, shall
be subject to the initial six month probationary period for earned vacation and
restrictions as set forth above.

All eligible 12-month Employees shall schedule a vacation each year. if
vacation is not utilized within the fiscal year, an amount equal to one year's
accumulation may be carried forward to the following fiscal year. The Employee
shall utilize this carryover by the end of the following year.

All 12-month Employees shall schedule with his/her supervisor to take sufficient
vacation to bring his/her accrued vacation to the hours below or hours allowed
for carry over by June 30. The Employee shall limit a “carryover” of no more
than 160 hours allowable into the next fiscal year.

The Superintendent or designee, may authorize an additionai number of hours
of annual vacation carryover when it is: (a) necessary to deny a vacation leave
request fo meet the needs of the District/County and the Employee is thereby
placed in jeopardy of losing vacation leave, or (b) the Superintendent or
designee shall consider the Employee’s special circumstances on a case-by-
case basis and both the Employer and Employee shall mutually agree prior to
the Employee utilizing the excess carryover hours. Excess carryover
consideration is limited to (40) forty hours.

W
Negotiations: Classified 2013-2014 Completion of Bargaining, January 14, 2014



5. SICK LEAVE , Article V

The parties agree that a new Employee of the District or County shall not be
eligible to take more than six (6) days, or the proportionate amount to which he
may be entitled, until the first day of the calendar month after completion of six
months of active service with the District or County. (EC45191)

6. CLASSIFIED COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNIT AGREEMENT

The parties agree that the Employer and S-PCEA Employees shall meet to
discuss a new Collective Bargaining Agreement and related Articles to the
Agreement during the 2013-2014 school year and work towards adoption of the
Collective Bargaining Agreement no later than June 30, 2014.

7. COMPLETION OF BARGAINING

The SIERRA-PLUMAS CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION (S-PCEA)
voluntarily waives and relinquishes the right to meet and negotiate re-openers
for school year 2013-2014, and agree that the District and County shall not be
obligated to meet and negotiate with respect to any additional subject or matter.
Nothing shall preclude the parties from meeting and negotiating by mutual

consent.

Accepted and Ratified
For the Classified Employees:

Mike Hale, President Date
Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees
Association

Michael Moore, President Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District Governing Board

Date presented to the Governing Board:

Date adopted by the Governing Board:

Accepted and Adopted
For the Employer:

Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D, Superintendent Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

Sierra County Office of Education

Allen Wright, President Date

Sierra County Board of Education

[ e e — e}
. e ___________________________..o e,

z: Negotiations{ 2013-14 Negotiations/Classified 2013_14 Completion of Bargaining

Negotiations: Classified 2013-2014 Completion of Bargaining, January 14, 2014



CONFIDENTIAL COMPLETION OF BARGAINING



AGREEMENT
between the

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES
and the
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD
and the
SIERRA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

1. Compensation:

The parties agree to increase the salary schedule by a total of six and a half
percent (6.5%). The increase shall take place as follows:

Effective July 1, 2013, the District and County shall increase each cell of

" the current 2012-2013 salary schedule by four and a half percent (4.5%}) for all

employees currently in active work status. Retroactive checks shall be issued for
unit members employed on the date of the ratification of this Agreement and shall
be issued with the January 2014 payroll.

Effective July 1, 2014, the District and County shall increase each cell of
the 2013-2014 salary schedule by an additional two percent (2%) for a total of six
and a half percent (6.5%) per 2013-2014 negotiated Agreement

2. Collective Bargaining Agreement document

The terms and conditions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement shall continue
in full force and effect until June 30, 2015, or such a time as the parties
negotiate and ratify a successor Agreement.

Nothing shall preciude the parties from meeting and negotiating by mutual consent.

S e ]

Negotiations: Confidential COMPLETION OF BARGAINING 2013-2014, Jan. 14,2014 Page 1




Accepted and Ratified Accepted and Adopted
For the Confidential Employees: For the Employer:

Rose Asquith, Representative Date Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D, Superintendent Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierra County Office of Education

Michael Moore, President Date Allen Wright, President Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Sierra County Board of Education
District Governing Board

Date presented to the Governing Board:

Date adopted by the Governing Board:

z: Negotiations/ 2013-14 Negotiations! Confidential Completion of Bargaining2013_4_Jan 2014

e ———————

Negotiations: Confidential COMPLETION OF BARGAINING 2013-2014, Jan. 14, 2014 Page 2



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
(SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS)

AND THE
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
and SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES
(UNREPRESENTED)

EFFECTIVE DATES: July 2013-June 2015



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE TITLE PAGE NO.

1 INTRODUCTION 3

2 RECOGNITION 4

3 TERM OF AGREEMENT 5

4 SAVINGS PROVISION 6

5 DEFINITIONS 7

6 WAIVER CLAUSE 8

7 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS 9

8 NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE _ 10

9 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 1112
10 EVALUATION PROCEDURE 13

11 TRANSFER & LAYOFF/REEMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE 14

12 BENEFITS 15-16
13 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 17-24
14 WORKWEEK 22

15 OVERTIME 23

16 HOLIDAYS ' 24

17 VACATION 25-26
18 RETIREMENT/GOLDEN HANDSHAKE 27

19 WAGES ' 28

20 DISCIPLINARY ACTION 29

21 LAYOFF PROCEDURES 30
22 PERSONNEL FOLDER 31

23 SAFETY 32
24 EMPLOYERS’ RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 33
25 PEACEFUL PERFORMANCE 34
APPENDIX A GRIEVANCE FORM 35
APPENDIX B EVALUATION FORM 36
APPENDIX C H & W BENEFIT PAYMENT AGREEMENT 37
APPENDIX D EMPLOYEE RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES FMLA 38
APPENDIX E COMPRESSED WORK SCHEDULE | 39-40
APPENDIX F EMPLOYEE 403 (b) ELECTION BENEFIT FEE 41
APPENDIX F SALARY REDUCTION AGREEMENT IRS 403(b) 42-43
APPENDIX G SALARY REDUCTION AGREEMENT (OTHER) a4
APPENDIX H S-PJUSDISCOE SALARY SCHEDULE 45

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES” BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 2



ARTICLE 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, Sections 3540-3549 of the Govermnment Code (“"Act’), of the
State of California.

Parties to the Agreement

The Articles and provisions contained herein constitute a bilateral and binding agreement (*Agreement”) by and between
the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Schoot District (“District”), the Sierra County Office of Education (*County”), and the
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Schocl District and Sierra County Office of Education Confidential Employees.

The term “Employer” shall refer to the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District or Sierra County Office of Education,
whichever is applicable.

1.3 it is understood and agreed by the Employer and the Confidential Employees that the articles contained within this
Agreement shall not be deemed to supersede other provisions of the Education Code, Board Policies, or other rules and
.regulations as long as the above do not conflict with the negotiated Agreement.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 3



ARTICLE 2

RECOGNITION

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

28

27

The Superintendent of the Sierra County Office of Education and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Schoo! District
Governing Board confirm its recognition of the Sierra-Plumas Jeint Unified and Sierra County Office of

Education Confidential Employees as the exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of meeting and negotiating
proposals which are authorized under provisions of the law. [

The following positions are included in the unit:

School Secretary *

Personnel Technician

Business Manager

Account Technician I11*
Administrative Assistant™
Accounting Technician®

County Support Secretary*
Receptionist/Production Secretary*
Payroll Clerk*

*Future hires into these positions after June 30, 2012, shall become part of the Sierra-Plumas Classified
Employees unit and placed in “Classified” service status. Full ime or part-time permanent Confidential
employees in current active status in the District/County as of July 1, 2012, shall be grandfathered into the
Cenfidential employee status without loss of status, benefits or seniority.

The foliowing posttions are specifically excluded from the bargaining agreement:

Temporéry Employees
Substitute Employees
Classified Employees

The Confidential Emplayees, in tumn, recognizes the Employer as the duly elected representative of the people
and agrees to negotiate exclusively with the Employer through the provisions of The Rodda Act.

The Cenfidential Employees agree that it, its members, and agents shall not attempt to negotiate privately or
individualiy with any Board member, adminisirator or supervisor. In turn, the Empioyer and its individual
representatives shall not attempt to negotiate privately or individually with any Confidential Employses member
or any individual in the unit.

New Classifications created or additional positions created within an existing class of positions shall be subject
to negotiations between the Employer and the Confidential Employees te determine if they are to be included in
the bargaining unit.

Generally, the Confidential Employees’ classification will be aligned in accordance with "Classified” service
employees as defined in Education Code(s).

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 4



ARTICLE 3 TERM OF AGREEMENT

3.1 Provisions for this Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2013, except where ctherwise noted, and shall remain in
effect until June 30, 2015 with the following exceptions:

Fallowing the negotiations procedure as outiined in Article 8 for the fiscal years 2013-2014, the following areas
may be re-opened:

2014-2015 - Salary, Benefits, plus two (2) items chosen by the Confidential Employees and two (2)
items chosen by the Employer and any other item mutually agreed upon.

32 The Confidential Employees shali present its written propesals for negotiations no later than the March meeting
of the District Board and County Superintendent. The Board/County Superintendent will respond with an initial

proposal response by the following regularly scheduled manthly Board meeting.

3.3 Negotiations shall begin as soon as reascnable.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 5




ARTICLE 4

SAVINGS PROVISION

4.1 tf any provisions or applications of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such provisions or applications will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent
permitted by law; but, all other provisions will continue in full force and effect.

4.2 In the event of suspensicn or invalidation of any article or section of this Agreement, the parties agree to meet
and negotiate within thirty {30) days after such determination for the purpose of arriving at 2 mutually
satisfactary replacement for such article or section.

43 The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall centinue in full force and effect, until June 3@, 2015, or until
such a time as the parties negotiate and ratify a successor Agreement.

Date:

Far the Confidentiat Employees: For the Employer:

Rose Asquith, Business Manager Date Merrif M. Grant, Superintendent Date

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierra County Office of Education

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 6



ARTICLE S

DEFINITIONS

51

53
5.4
55
586
57
58

59

“Anniversary Date” refers to the date upon which an employee is hired and earned a safary. This is the first day
of the pay period next following completion of the required period of service.

“Days” shall mean days cn which the main administrative office of the District and SCOE are open for business
unless otherwise specified within this Agreement.

“Length of Service” for the purpose of this Agreement, length of service is to mean the hours of service for the
current cantinuous employment period.

“Short term employee” is a person hired for a specific temporary project of limited duration which, when
completed, shall no longer be required.

“Probationary employee” is a regular employee who will become permanent upon completion of a prescribed
probationary period.

“Regular or permanent employee” is an employee who successfully completes an initial probationary period,
which shall not exceed twelve {12) months of service beyond the initial date of employment by the Employer.

“Seniority” for the purpose of this agreement seniority is determined by the length of service beginning with the
current continuous employment period.

"Confidential Employees” All persons in confidential positions identified in Article 2.2 as being included in: the
unit are Confidentiai Employees.

“DistricCounty” Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 7



ARTICLE 6

WAIVER CLAUSE

6.1

6.2

8.3

6.4

6.5

This Agreement sets forth, in writing, the full and entire understanding of the parties regarding the matters set
forth herein.

It is agreed and understood that the parties hereto waive their rights to negotiate any matter covered herein
during the term of this contract.

Nothing in this paragraph shall preclude the parties from mutually agreeing, in writing, to negotiate on any
issue(s) contained herein during the term of this Agreement.

No agreement alteration, understanding, variation, waiver or modificaticn of any of the terms or provisions
contained herein shall, in any manner, be binding upon the parties hereto unless made and executed in writing
by all parties hereto, and if required, approved and implemented by the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of
Education and the District/County Confidential Employees.

The waiver, by mutual agreement and in writing, of any terms or conditions of this cantract shall not constitute a
precedent in the future enforcement of all its terms and provisions. '

SIERRA-PLUMAS /SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 8



ARTICLE 7 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

71 The Confidential Employees can use the Employer's buildings and facilities upon naotification of the
Superintendent to conduct Confidential Employees’ business provided it does not interfere with the operations
of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District or Sierra County Office of Education.

72 Members of the Confidential Employees shall be permitted o transact Confidential Employees business on
office property before the beginning of the established workday, during any duty-free lunch periods, and any
time immediately following the established work day. In any event, no Confidential Employees, except the
Confidential Employees representative, shall be permitted to use assigned work time to conduct Confidentiat
Employees business cn or off the premises.

7.3 The Confidential Employees shall have the right to post notice of activities and matters of the Confidential
Emptoyeas concern on the existing builetin boards in the District’County office and site facilities. Such posting
may be accomplished during generally recognized paid break periods. The Confidential Employees may use
the District’County office inter-office mail delivery service and employee mailboxes for communication to
employees not to exceed twice per week and shall be during non-work time of the employee. It shalt be the
responsibility of the Confidential Employees to remove outdated information.

74 The Employer will provide the Confidential Employees representative one (1) copy and the negotiations
chairperson with one (1) copy of the public materiais in the Board packet prior to any regular and/or special
meeting held by said Board which directly affects Confidential employees.

7.5 The Confidential Employees, upon request, may have access to the records pertaining to the employee
seniority roster indicating the employees’ employment date, classification and job site.

7.8 Each Confidential Employees shall have available a copy of the Agreement. This copy shall be available via the
Internet at www.sierracountyofficecfeducation.org. A printed copy of the Agreement shall be available for
review in the District/County administration office.

7.7 The Employer agrees to provide paid release time for up to two (2) hours per month for the Confidential
Employees representative or documented designee to conduct Confidential Employees business.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 9




ARTICLE 8 NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

8.1 For the first session of each bargaining period, the Employer and the Confidential Employees shall appoint not
more than two (2) persons to act as their respective negotiating teams.

;

8.2 Negotiations will be conducted at times and places mutually agreeable to the respective negetiating teams.

8.3 Iltis understood and agreed that all tentative agreements negotiated by the negotiating teams are subject to
formai ratification by the Cenfidential Employees membership pricr to presentation to the Employer, and that
suosequent formai adoption by the Empioyer shal! constitute the conclusion of negotiations activities for the
year.

8.4 The parties shall endeavor to reach an agreement on the ground rules priar to each set of negatiations which
are to be conducted. The parties agree to abide by whatever rules apply for that set of negctiations.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 10



ARTICLE 9 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

9.1 Definitions

911  A“grievance” is an alleged violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of any specific provisions of this
Agreement which adversely affects the grievant,

1.2  The “grievant’ is an employee in the unit who has properly submitted an alleged grievarice.

913 "Days’ as used in this procedure shall mean any day in which the District/County Office is regularly
open for business.

914 “Immediate Supervisor’ refers to that person as defined in Article 5.8, who, has immediate responsibility
for directing the work force within his/her geographic area of influence.

9.2 Purpose
921  The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, equitable
solutions to the problems of employees which may from time to time arise affecting the welifare or
working conditions as defined under the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Both parties agree
that these proceedings will be kept informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any leve! of the
procedure.

9.2.2  Since it is important that grievances be pracessed as rapidly as possible, every effort should be made
to expedite these procedures. The time limits, however, may be extended or decreased by mutual
agreement of both parties.

9.3 Procedure
' It in the judgment of the Confidential Employees and the Employer, a grievance affects a group of
Confidential Employees, the Confidential Employees may submit such grievance in writing to the
Superintendent or designee directly and the processing of such grievance shall be commenced at
Level Ii of the formal grievance procedure.

9.3.1 Informal Level:
9.3.4.1 Before filing a formal written grievance, the grievant shal attempt to resolve it by an informal
conference with hisfher immediate supervisor.

9.3.1.2 In cases in which the proposed remedy would entail & financial outlay by the District’County
Office, the grievant shall notify his/her immediate supervisor within ten (10} days after the
grievant knew or should have known of the act of omission giving rise to the problem.

8.3.1.3 A second informal discussion may be held between the grievant and a representative of
his/her choice and the grievant's immediate supervisor. Whether or not to have this meeting
shall be at the discretion of the grievant.

932 Formal Levels:
9.3.2.1 Levell:
83211 Within thirty (30) calendar days after the occurrence of the act or omission giving
rise to the grievance, the grievant must present the grievance on the Confidentiai
Employees’ grievance form to his/her immediate supervisor.

93.2.1.2  This statement shall be a clear concise statement of the circumstances giving rise
to the grievance, citation of the specific article, section and paragraph of this
Agreement that is alleged to have been violated, the decision rendered at the
informal conference, and the specific remedy sought.

9.3.2.1.3  Within ten (10} days after receipt of the written grievance by the appropriate
administratorfsupervisor, he/she shall meet with the aggrieved party and if

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 11



94

8.3.2.2 Levelll
93221

93222

83223

93224

9323 Levellll;
9.3.2.3.1

93232

93233

Miscellaneous

desired, a representative from the Confidential Employees, in an effort to resolve
the grievance. The appropriate administrator/superviscr or designee shall
communicate the decision to the grievant in writing within ten {10) days sfter
receiving the grievance.

In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level |, he/she may ;
appeal the decision on the Confidential Employees’ Grievance Form to the '
District Superintendent or County Superintendent of Schoois or designee with ten
{10} days.

This staterment should include a copy of the original grievance, the decision
rendered, and a clear, concise statement of the reason for the appeal.

The District Superintendent or County Superintendent of Schools or designee
shali conduct an investigation into the allegations and shall communicate the
decision within ten (10) days after receiving the appeal.

The County Superintendent of Schools shail make the final decision for County
Confidential Employees at Level |1,

If a District Confidential Employee {grievant) is not satisfied with the decision at
Level Il, he/she, within ten (10) days after recelving the decision from the District
Superintendent may appeal the decision on the grievance form to the District

Governing Board,

This statement shall include a copy of the original grievance and appeal, the
decision rendered and a clear concise staterment of the reasons for the second
appeal.

The Sierra-Plumas Jeint Unified School District Governing Board shall

communicate its decision to the grievant within five (5) days after a regular or
special Board meeting. The decision of the Beard shall be final and no further
procedure is available to the grievant within the provisions of this Agreement.

89.4.1  Neither the Employer or Confidential Employees, nor any member of the administration or
bargaining unit shall take reprisals affecting the employment status or working conditions of
any employee, member of management, Confidential Employees representative, or any other
participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.

9.4.2. The actual grievances and all dccuments relfating thereto shall be filed separately from the
Confidential Employee's personnel file.

943  Atany level of this procedure, the Confidential Employess may consult with a representative of
his/her choice in order to gain assistance in preparation, investigation, or resolution of the
grievance. Such assistance may extend to help in the presentation of the grievance at any
formal level of this procedure or at the second informal level provided above.




ARTICLE10 EVALUATION PROCEDURE

10.1. Any Confidential Employee may be evaluated by the immediate supervisor at any time when deemed to be the
in the best interest of the program. Each immediate supervisor under whem the Confidential Employees has
served for sixty (60) working days or more during any rating period shall provide a performance evaluation even
though the Confidential Employees may have left hisfher control.

A regular personnel evaluation program will be affected according to the following schedule:
Probationary status Empioyees: Year one (1) at the end of the 2 {second} and 5" {fitth) month of service;

Permanent status Employees:

A. Once each year usually between February and May;

B. An evaluation every two (2) years for employment years three (3) to ten (10) years;
C. Aferten (10) years of employment, an evaluation every three (3) years.

10.2 A Confidential Employee shall be evaluated by an immediate supervisor prior to any pesition transfer.
1021 Employee shall be evaluated at the end of the 2™ {(second) and 5" (fifth) month of service in any new
position whether by a volunteer or involunteer transfer.

10.3. Procedure

10.3.1 Performance evaluation reports shall be made on the Performance Evaluation for Confidential
Employees Form and shall be prepared by the Confidential Employee’s immediate supervisor. The
form shall be reviewed by the next higher supervisor.

10.3.2 The immediate supervisor shall present the performance evaluation report to the Confidential Employee
and shall discuss it with him/her. The evaluation form shall be signed by the employee to indicate
receipt, and he/she shall be given a signed copy. The Employee may attach comments to the
evaluation form if hefshe does sa within ten {10) business days following the evaluation interview.

10.3.3. Performance evaluation reports shall be filed in the Confidential Employee’s personnel records. All
performance evaluations shall be confidential.

104 Special Evaluations: At any time a superviscr may issue to an employee a Notice of Commendation or Notice of
Unsatisfactory Service. Such notices shall be made on prescribed forms and shali set forth specific reasons for
recognition of outstanding or unsatisfactory service by the Confidential Employees. It shall be deiivered to the
Confidential Employee personally by his/her immediate supervisor whenever practical. A copy of such notice
shall be placed in the Confidential Employee’s personnel record and shall be available to review in connection
with promotional examinations.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 13



ARTICLE 11

TRANSFER AND LAYOFF/REEMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE

11.1

M.2

11.3

11.5

11.6

1.7

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOY

Seniority is determined by length of service in paid status beginning with the current continuous employment
period.

Transfers, whether voluntary (Confidential Employee initiated) or involuntary (Employer initiated), are the
change in a Confidential Employee’s waork assignment with the same classification.

Transfers shall not change the Confidential Empioyee’s service time, anniversary date, accumulated illness
leave, or accumulated vacation credit, or in any other manner reflect adversely upon his/her rights as provided
in this Agreement.

Reasons for any transfer which is not voluntary shall be discussed with the Confidential Employee by his/her
immediate supervisor at least seven (7} days before the first work day.

Confidential Employees who wish to be considered for a particular position shalf submit 2 written request to the
personnel department.

All open positions and empioyment opportunities will be posted on the District/County website.

Order of layoff and reempioyment: Whenever a Confidentiai Employees is laid off, the order of layoff within the
class shall be determined by the length of service. The Confidential Employee, who has been employed the
shortest time in the class, plus higher classes, shall be laid off first. Reemployment shail be in the reverse order
of tayoff. If a tie should occur a lottery will be held.

Page 14



ARTICLE 12

BENEFITS

121

2.3

12.4

12.5

126

The Employer shall provide zll eligible Confidential Employees as specified in this article and their eligible
dependents with medicai coverage, family dental, family vision and life insurance coverage.

For the 2013-2014 fiscal year, the Employer contribution for family medical, dental, vision coverage and life
insurance, shall be capped at $13,840.50 annually per eligible Employee.

12.2.1 Confidential Employees assigned to paid status greater than 27.5 hours per week shall be entitled to
Employer paid contributions capped as stated in Article 12.2 abave.

12.2.2 Confidential Employees regularly assigned to paid status part-time at teast 20 hours per week or
* greater, may participate in the Employer-sponsored group benefit programs, as allowed by the vendor
contracts for family medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits by paying the full (100%)
premium cost.

12.2.3  Section 125, also referred to "Cafeteria Plan”, of the Internal Revenue Code provides participants an
opporiunity to receive certain benefits on a pretax basis. The cafeteria plans are made pursuant to
salary reduction agreements tetween the Employer and the Employee. Confidential Employees are
eligible to participate in Section 126 cafeteria plans.

12.2.4 Confidential Employees are eligible to participate in the annual open enroliment as authorized by
current benefit vendor(s). The annual open enroliment is to allow employees who are enrolled in a
medical benefits plan the oppartunity to enrcll in any plan offered by the Employer.

12.2.5 The Employer health insurance dollar contribution shall be prorated on an annuat basis. An Employee
who is employed less than a full fiscal year shall be entitled only to the proportionate annual Employer
dollar contributions toward health and welfare benefits.

Eccnomic Fringe Benefits While On Paid Leave:
Confidential Employees on paid leave are considered to be in continuous employment and ne interruption to the
fringe benefit program shall be imposed upon Confidential Employees on paid leave.

Econcmic Fringe Benefits While on Unpaid Leave:
Confidential Empioyees granted an unpaid leave of absence shall have their Employer-paid fringe benefit
programs discontinued at the end of the month in which the leave begins.

12.4.1 Confidential Employees may continue fringe benefit coverage while on an unpaid leave by paying the
fuil premium in advance each month including the Emplayer's contribution for the duration of the leave.

Economic Fringe Benefits — Termination
Confidential Employees who terminate shail have their fringe benefit programs discontinued at the end of the
moenth in which their termination occurs except as may be required by applicable State or Federal law.

Retirees
Retirees from the Employer, and their qualified dependents, may continue to participate in any of the Employer
health benefits plans at his/her own expense providing such participation is acceptable to the health insurance
provider. Retirees shall pay all the premiums, dues, and other charges, including any increase in premiums.
12.6.1 The retiree shall be eligible to participate in the Employer’s group health plan beyond age 65 in
accordance with the authorization and guidelines of the health insurance provider.
12.6.1.2 The retiree must be enrolled in Medicare Part A and Medicare Part B programs to be eligible
for the "retiree” rate premium schedule. Without the Medicare Part A and Part B
par’uupa‘uon the retiree may partlupate atthe apphcable premlum rate schedule.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013 2015 Page 15



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY QOFFICE OF EDUCATION

Health and Welfare Premium Payment Agreement

RETIREE NAME: DATE OF RETIREMENT:

A. Retired Employees who are covered by the DistricttSCOE health plan at the time of their retirement may
continue the health, vision and dental benefit program at his/fher own expense on a tiered rate structure.
Retirees shall pay all the premiums, dues, and other charges, including any increase in premiums for the
duration of his/her enroliment. Eligible retirees and/or covered dependents must secure Medicare Part A and
Part B. Retirees who discontinue coverage cannot re-enroll under the District/SCOE health plans.

B. Employees who are granted the Retirement/Golden Handshake by the Employer for one (1) year of retiree
health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as required by health care provider) for medical, dental and
vision plans shall be responsible for all premiums in excess of the Employer contributions, dues and other
charges, including any increase in premiurns for the duration of hisfher enroliment.

~C. Al premiums are payable to the District or SCOE and due in full no later than the 5" (fifth) day of the month
and will be considered delinquent after the 5" (fifth) day. Should the health insurance premium payments
become delinquent for two (2) consecutive menths, benefits will be cancelled and reinstatement will not be
allowed.

I have read and understand the provision of this Agreement and agree to sign this authorization.

Retiree Signature: Date:

Doc: Confidentia/H&W Payment Agreement Retiree
Z: forms/HEW Payment Agreement R

ARTICLE 13 LEAVES OF ABSENCE

All reference to (working} day(s) as used in this Article shall be considered a standard either (8) hour day or
portion thereof. Confidential Employees employed less than forty hours per week, or less than twelve months:
year, shall be granted a proportionate amount of the full-time employee. '

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015

Page 16



13.1 Status While on Leave of Absence
13.1.1 Paid Leave: Confidential Empioyees granted a paid leave of absence shall be considered to be in
continuous employment and shall be entitled to all earned sick leave, vacation, service time, transfer
and promotion considerations, and other benefits as provided in Article 12, Benefits. The Confidential
Employees shall also be entitled to all base salary adjustments. However, the Confidential Employees
wili be entitlied to hisfher step increase provided that the Confidential Employees has worked at least
75% of all scheduled workdays.

13.1.2 Unpaid Leave: Confidential Employees granted an unpaid leave of absence shall be considered to be
in continuous employment, however, shall not be entitled to earn additionat sick leave or vacation time
while on such leave. They will be entitled to their step increase provided that they have worked at least
75% of all scheduled workdays.

13.2 Sick Leave
13.2.1  Every regular Confidentiai Employee shall be entitled to one (1) day of paid sick leave for illness or
injury for each full menth of employment. This one (1} day shall be prorated accordingly for regular
Confidential Employees working partiai months. (Education Cede 45181 Classified Employee)

13.2.1.1 On July 1 of each year, every Confidential Employee shall receive in advance their
entittement of sick leave.

13.2.1.2 New Employees assigned to a position after July 1 shall receive sick leave for the remainder
of the fiscal year ending June 30 depending on the total calendar months or porticn thereof
remaining.

13.2.1.3 A new Employee of the District/County shali not be eligible to take more than six (6} days, or
the proportionate amount to which he may be entitled, until the first day of the calendar month
after compietion of six months of active service with the District/County. (Education Code
45191 Classified Employee)

13.2.2 Unused sick leave shall be accumulative from year to year.

13.2.3 The Employer may require & physician’'s or practitioner's verification of illness if a Confidential
Empioyees has been on sick leave for three {3) or more consecutive days or a total of fiteen days in
any school year. The physician/practitioner's statement shall include:

» The reason for absence

Dates of treatment

Type of treatment

e Whether or not the Employee can perform all assigned duties

13.2.4 Confidential Empioyees absent through illness or injury must notify their immediate supervisor as early
as possible. Upon return, the Confidential Employee must complete the appropriate Leave of Absence
form indicating the date(s) of the sick leave taken.

13.2.5 Sick ieave shall not be misused by an Employee or used to enable him/her to earn wages from another
employer. Misuse of sick leave shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

13.26 Eamed unused sick leave may be counted, in a proportionate amount, to service credit for computing
retirement in accordance to current laws.

13.2.7 Differential Sick Leave

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 17




When sick leave and all other paid leaves have been exhausted and a Confidential Employee is absent
because of illness or accident, the Confidential Employee shall be paid the difference between hisfher
salary and the salary of the substitute for the period not to exceed five (5) months.

The fifth {5) month period shall commence on the first day of the absence and run concurrently with all .-
other leaves. If a Confidential Employees is unable to return to work following the allowable five (5) '
months, the Confidential Employees may request an unpaid leave of absence not to exceed six (6)
months. If an unpaid leave of absence is not available, or if at the end of the unpaid leave the
Confidential Employee remains unable to assume the duties of his/her position, the Confidential
Employee will be placed on a 39 month reemployment list, (Education Code 45195 Classified
Employee)

13.2.8 Transfer of Sick Leave from Anather District
Any Confidentiai employee of any school district who has been an employee of that district for a period
of one (1) calendar year and who subsequently accepts employment with the District/County within one
{1} year of his /her former employment, shall be credited with all of the eamed but unused sick leave
which was credited to him/her in his/her former school district. (Education Code 45202 Classified
Employee)

1 if termination was for cause, the transfer may bhe made if agreed to by the District/County
Superintendent ar designee.

1329 Atthe option of the Confidential Employee, the Confidential Employee may elect to request maternity
leave of absence without the use of sick leave provisions in order to preserve accumulated leave days
earned and needed during the period of temporary disability.

13.2.10 A male Confidential Employees may utilize up to three {3) days of his sick leave to care for his wife
during child birth.

13.3 Personal Necessity Leave;
13.3.1 Confidential Employees may elect to use up to seven (7) days of accumulated sick leave for personal
necessity during any schocl year.

13.3.2 Personal Necessity Leave includes:

» Death of a member of his/her immediate family when additional leave is required beyond that
provided for bereavement leave provisions;

= Anaccident invalving hisfher person or progerty, or the person or property of a member of
his/her immediate family;

» Appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party or witness
under subpoena or other order,

s  Other reasons that the Governing Board may prescribe (refer to Board Policy AR4261.2)

13.3.3 Request for Perscnai Necessity Leave shall be made at least three (3) days in advance to the
Employee’s immediate supervisor. Advance permission shall not be required of any Confidential
Employee in cases involving the death of a member of the Employee’s immediate family or an accident
involving the Employee's person ar propeny or the persan or praperty of a member of his/her
immediate family,

13.34 The request for such leave shali be submitted on a leave of absence form to the Employee’s immediate
supervisor.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 18




13.35 In no case shall Personal Necessity Leave be used for an extensicn of a school holiday or personal
vacation when not provided under the terms of the employment, or leave that would cause disruption of
the normal operating functions of the schoal.

134 Bereavement Leave:

' 13.4.% Employees are entitled to a lsave of up to three (3) days, or five (5) days if out-of-state or more than
300 miles one way travel is required, upon the death of any member of the employee’s immediate
family. No deduction shall be made from the employee's salary, ner shail such leave be deducted from
any other leave to which the employee is entitled.

No deduction shall be made from the salary of the Confidential Employees nor shall such leave be
deducted from any leave provided by this Agreement.

1342 Immediate family includes: the mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, or a grandchild of the
Employee or of the spouse of the Employee, and the spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-
law, brother or sister of the employee, or any relative living in the immediate household of the
Employee.

13.4.3 Any additional days beyond those provided in sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 must be handled under the
provisions of Personal Necessily Leave.

13.5 Civic Duty Leave:
13.5.1 Confidential Employees who are involuntarily summoned for civic duty, subpoenaed to be present in
court as juror ar as a witness, shall be granted civic duty leave, with pay, for such time as is required by
the summcens or subpoena.

13.5.2 Confidential Employees are expected to return to work during any day or portion thereof in which civic
duty services are not required.

1353 Clivic duty leave will not be granted o Confidential Employees reguired o appear in court as
defendants for personal traffic or other violaticns of the law or as a defendant in connection with other
employment.

13.5.4 Payment received for approeved civic duty leave, with the exception of any transportation

reimbursement, shall be tured over the District/County business office.

13.5.5 Confidential Employees wil: be granted a leave of absence if called for grand jury service. Leave of
absence for grand jury service shall be with pay up to the amount of the difference between the
Employee’s regular earnings and any amount he/she receives as juror fees.

13.6 Military Leave:
13.6.1 Confidential Employees shall be granted any military leave to which they are entitled, under law as
Classified school empioyees. Confidential Employees shall be required to request military ieave in
writing and, upon request, to supply the District/County business Office with “orders” and status reports.

13.7 tndustrial Accident and lliness Leave:
13.7.1 Confidential Employees who sustain an injury or illness arising directly out of and in the course and
scope of their employment shalt be eligible for not less than sixty (60) werking days paid leave in any
one (1) fiscal year. The fiscal year is defined as July 1 through June 30 of each year.

. Allowable leave shall not accumulate from year-to-year,
. ndustrial Accident or lliness Leave will commence on the first day of absence;

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 ~ Page19




13.8

13.9

13.72

13.7.3

13.7.4

. Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to an award granted the employee
under the workers’ compensation laws in this State, exceed the normal wage for the day;

. Industrial Accident leave will be reduced by one (1) day for each day of authorized absence
regardless of the compensation award made under workers' compensation;
. When an industrial accident or iliness occurs at a time when the full sixty (60} days will overlap ™

into the next fiscal year, the Employee shall be entitled to only that amount remaining at the
end of the fiscal year in which the injury or illness occurred for the same illness or injury.

Industrial Accident or lliness Leave is to be used in lieu of normal sick leave benefits. When entitlement
to Industrial Accident or lilness leave under this section has been exhausted, entitlement to other sick
leave, including the differential sick leave aliowance, vacation and other paid leave shall be used.

During any paid leave of absence, the Confidentiai Employee shall endorse to the Emplayer the
temporary disability indemnity checks received on account of such industrial accident or ilness. The
Employer, in turn, shall issue the Confidential Employeeas appropriate salary warrants for payment of
the Confidential Employees’ normal wage.

When all avaitable leaves of absence (paid cr unpaid) have been exhausted, and if the Confidentiai
Employee is not medically able to resume his/her duties, the Employee shall, if not placed in another
position, be placed on a reemployment list for a period of 39 months. If the Employee is able to resume
his/her duties during the 39 month period, the Employee shall be employed in a vacant position in the

class of histher previous assignment. The employment shzall be over all other candidates except for a

reemployment list established because of lack of work or lack of funds,

Emergency Conditions

13.81

13.8.2

13.8.3

13.8.4

Emergency conditions are those conditions totally outside of a Confidential Employees’ control such as
extreme snowfali, flood or other weather-related phenomena, workplace power outage, fire or other
natural catastrephe or circumstances that require urgent attention of the Employee and which prevent
an employee from reporting to or remaining at his/her assigned workplace. o

Should a Confidential Employees show up for and be ready for work at histher regular assignment but
is then sent home by a supervisor, he/she shall be credited for 2 minimum of two (2) hours pay or the
time actually worked, whichever is greater.

Any Confidential Employee who is not able to attend cr remain at wark for reasons of emergency as
defined above, shall use vacation, perscnal necessity, District/County leave ar leave without pay.

If the Confidential Employee must take a leave without pay because no paid leaves are available,
he/she may request his/her supervisor to consider a means of allowing them to make up the time and
the lost wage.

Family Care and Medical Leave

13.9.1

13.9.2

Entitlernent to Leave:

Confidential Employees may be eligible for unpaid leave under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
andfor the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), subject to certain qualifying circumstances under the
law. Refer to Administrative Regulation AR4261.8 and Appendix D. It is intended that current leave
entitlements shall run concurrent with FMLA and CFRA leave. This item is enforceable as set out in
faw.

Since the Federal and State laws have different regulations, definitions and benefits which may change
in the future, the Unit member should contact the personnel department for further information.




13.10

13.9.3 Advance Notice of Leave: :
If the Confidential Employee’s need for a leave pursuant o this Article is foresesable, the Confidential
Employee shall provide the Superintendent with thirty (30) days advance naotice of the need for the
leave.

13.94 Healthcare Provider/Certification of Leave:
Verification by a physician shall be required by the District/County to validate a serious health condition.

A, Chikd, Spouse or Parent Care: A Confidential Employee's request for leave to care for a child, a
spouse, or & parent who has a serious health condition shall be supported by a certification issued
by the physician of the individual requiring care. The Certification shall provide the foliowing:

a. The date on which the sericus health conditicn commenced,;

b. Praobable duration of the condition;

c. Estimate of the amount of time that the health care provider believes the Employee needs
to care for the individual requiring the care; and

d. A statement that the sericus health condition warrants the participation of the family
member to provide the care during the period of treatment or supervision of the individual
requiring care.

Upcn expiration of the time estimated by the healthcare provider for the Confidential Employee to
care for the individual requiring care, the Confidential Employee shail obtain recertification in
accordance with the procedures specified above, if additional leave is required.

B. Employee lliness: A Confidential Employee’s request for a leave because of the Confidential
Employee’s own sericus health condition shall be supported by a certification issued by his/her
healthcare provider. '

13.95 Amendment of Statutory Law:
This Article shall he deemed to be automatically maodified to conform to any amendment or modification
of Government Code §12945.2, the FMLA, or any other applicable faw. If any such amendment gives
the Superintendent discretion to reguire any act by the Employee, the act shall be deemed to be
reguired.

Religious Leave: {Board pclicy AR4261.2 Nov 2013}

The Superintendent or designee may grant an employee up to three (3) days of leave per year for religious
purposes, provided that the leave is requested in advance and that it does not cause additional district expenditures,
the neglect of assigned duties, or any other unreascnabie hardship on the district.

The day(s) of absence shall be deducted from an employee’s vacation leave, District‘County leave day(s), or eligible
employees may be granted unpaid leave for religious observances at the discretion of the Superintendent or
designee.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 21

R



ARTICLE 14

WORKWEEK

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015

The normal workweek for full-time Confidential Employees shail be (8} hours per day, Monday through Friday:
however, the Cenfidential Employees' work assignment may be modified within a seven day workweek, as
follows:

The normal workweek shall be eight (8) hours per day, Monday through Friday; however, the unit member's
work assignment may be modified, with prior notice 1o the Employee, to meet program needs. Nothing herein
shail restrict the extension of the regular werkday or workweek on an overtime basis when such is necessary to
carry oh the business of the Employer except as provided for in Article 15.

When it will not adversely affect the program, the Emplayer may allow a Confidential Employee to flex off
time during a 40 hour work week with prior approvai from immediate supervisor.

Notwithstanding 14.1, cther workweeks may be implemented at the request of the Confidential Employees
andfor the District/County with the mutual agreement of both parties. The flexible schedule will be established in
accordance with the following procedures:

A Requests/Responses — All requests and responses shall be submitted in writing.

B. Schedule — The proposal for flexible hours may define a period of time or establish a timeline

D. Employee wili sign a Compressed Work Schedule Agreement

C Discontinuance — If in the opinion of the supervigor, the flexible hours are not contributing to the

efficiency of the Employer, the schedule may be discontinued and the Confidential Employees shall
revert to the work schedule in effect prior to histher flexible hours schedule.

Confidential Employees whose work schedules are dependent upen student contact may have their work days
or work year altered to accommodate the various student attendance schedules of District/County schools.

The Employer shail provide for those Confidential Employees who work a six {8) hour or longer work day, a
duty-free, non-paid status, meat period of not less than thirty (30} consecutive minutes. The meal period may
be assigned by the Confidential Employees’ supervisor.

Confidential Employees working seven (7) or more hours per day are allowad a morning and afternoon rest
break, not to exceed fifteen {(15) minutes for each break. Confidential Employees working four (4) or more hours
per day but fewer than seven {7) hours are provided cne (1) fifteen (15) minute break. Supervisors may
schedule the appropriate time for breaks normally midpoint in the morning or afterncon. Breaks may not be
used to come to work late, leave early, or extend lunch breaks.

Page 22



ARTICLE15  OVERTIME

151

152

15.3

16.4

16.56

15.6

15.7

15.8

The Employer agrees o compensate Confidential Employees at the rate of one and cne-half (1-1/2) times the
Confidential Employee’s regular rate of pay for each hour of work in excess of the eight (8) hour day and forty (40)
hour workweek. A supervisor may grant compensatory time off to a Confidential Employee at the same ratio and in
lieu of overtime cash payment. The supervisor shali, upon request, inform a Confidential Employee of the intended
method of payment {cash or compensatory time off) at the time of directing the overtime work. Confidential
Employees classified as "Exempt” management are not subject or eligible for overtime compensaticn.

Definitions:
15.2.1 “Hours Worked” include all time during which the Confidential Employee is permitted to work for the
Employer whether or not authorized or ordered by the immediate supervisor. Except for emergencies,
Confidentiai Employees who work unauthorized overtime may be subject to disciplinary action.
15.2.2 The term “compensatory time” and “compensatory time off’ means hours during which a Confidential

Employee is not working, which are not counted as hours worked during the applicable workweek or
other work period for purposes of overtime compensation, and fer which the Confidential Employees is
compensated at the Confidential Employee’s regular rate.

Confidential Empioyees may not accrue more than ten (10) hours of compensatory time off. Overtime worked after
the maximum accrual is reached shall be compensated by cash payment.

Compensatory time off may be earned in lieu of cash compensation for authorized overtime. This compensating
time off shall be granted within twelve {12) calendar months following the month in which the overtime was worked.

(Education Code 45128 Classified Service)

Except in an emergency which prevents preapproval, afl overtime must be authorized in advance by the Confidential
Employee’s supervisor. Emergency situations must be brought to the attention of the supervisor as soon as
practical.

The Employer will settle the overtime account, if compensated by cash, with the Confidential Employees at the end
of the pay period in which it is earned. A Confidential Employees who has terminated employment shall be paid for
the unused compensatory time at the final regular rate of pay.

A Confidential Employse that is assigned to supervise students on overnight trips or field trips shall not be paid for
more.than eight {8) hours in any twenty-four (24) hour period.

Staff development days shall be a paid work- day only when the Employee is directed to attend by the
superintendent and/or the Empioyee’s supervisor.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 23



ARTICLE 16 HOLIDAYS

16.1 The Employer agrees to provide all eligible Confidential Employees with the following paid holidays and leave
days:
# OF DAYS
HOLIDAY ALLOWED

Independence Day
Labor Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve
Christmas Day
New Year's Eve
New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Lincoln's Day
Washington's Day
Memoaorial Day

N N N W W N N U W

Spring Break (non_accruab|e day) | DistrictCounty Confidential Office Staff [

—_

End of School (non—accruable day) 1 | Mistrict Canfidential Schanl Secrataring l

District/County Leave Day 4 f District’Countv Confidential Emplovees I

16.2 ' The Governing Board shall set the date of each holiday arnually and the Business Manager shall make
available an office calendar on which the dates shall be listed.

16.3 All eligible Confidential Employees wili be entitled to payment for authorized holidays, provided that they were :
employed on the holiday and in paid status their last working day immediately preceding and succeeding the
holiday.

16.4 If the Employer requires a Confidential Employee to work on these holidays, the Confidential Employee may

take another day off within thirty (30) working days in lieu of that holiday provided that such holiday will provide
for at least a three (3} day weekend if the employee so desires.

16.5 District’/County Leave Day(s) are non-accruable days, not subject to deduction from sick, personal leave, or
vacation days and must be taken prior to June 30" of the current school year or forfeit the right to use it.
District/County Leave Days shall be prorated proportionately for days of service the employee is employed, i.e.
Empioyees hired as “late start” after beginning of the fiscal year and/or scheduled work days according to the
position.

16.6 Paid Non-Accruable Day(s)
Confidential Employees shall use the one (1) paid non-accruable day, not subject to deduction from sick,

personal leave, vacation or District’/County Leave days, during the time period as specified below or forfeit the
right to use it.

16.6.1 District/County Confidential Office Staff Spring Break non-accruable day; one (1) day during Spring
Break as designated on the adopted scheol calendar. The District/County Office will remain open and
staffed during the recess.

16.6.2 District/County Confidential Schooi Secretaries non-accruable day; One (1) day during the final two (2)
weeks |mmednateiy tollowing the end of the school as designated on the adopted school calendar, or no
tater than June 30". '

SIERRA PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 20 13 2015 Page 24



ARTICLE17  VACATION

17.1 Eligibility — Confidential Employees eligible for this vacation section are those listed in the recognition section as
classifications represented by the unit. Amounts referred to below are relative to full-time employment. Annual

vacation leave for Employees shall be granted cn a monthly accrual method. Pro-rated amounts shall be utilized
for persons waorking less than full-time.

17.1.1 Earned vacation shall not become a vested right untii completion of the initial six months of
employment (Education Code 45197 Classified Employee)

17.2 Vacation Accumulation Schedules — The following vacation accumulation schedules shall apply as indicated:

17.2.1  For persons employed on or tefore June 30, 2012, the following schedule of accumulation shall apply.
The hourly accumulation is for regular hours paid (not including overtime).

CONFIDENTIAL MONTHLY
EMPLOYEE YEAR ANNUAL VACATION ACCRUAL

OF SERVICE ACCRUAL ENTITLEMENT

One Ten working days (80 hours) 6.667
Three Fifteen working days (120 hours) 10 hours
Five Twenty working days (160 hours) 13.334 hours

17.2.2 For persons with a date-of-hire after June 30, 2012, the following schedule of accumulation shall apply.
The hourly accumulation is for regular hours paid (not including overtime).

CONFIDENTIAL MONTHLY

EMPLOYEE YEAR ANNUAL VACATION ACCRUAL

OF SERVICE ACCRUAL ENTITLEMENT

One io Five Ten working days (80 hours) 6.667

Sixto Ten Fifteen working days (126 hours) 10 hours

Eleven + Twenty working days (160 hours) 13.334 hours
17.3 Confidential Employees shall schedule a vacation each year. If vacation cannot be approved within the fiscal

year, an amount equzl to ona year's accumulation may be carried forward to the following fiscal year. The
Confidential Employee shalt utilize this carryover by the end of the foliowing year.

All 12-month Employees shall scheduie with his/her supervisor to take sufficient vacation to bring histher
accrued vacation to the hours below or hours allowed for carry over by June 30. The Employee shall limit a
“carry-over” of no more than 160 hours allowable into the next fiscal year.

17.4 The Superintendent or designee, shall authorize an additional number of hours of annual vacation carryover
when itis: (a) necessary to deny a vacation leave request to meet the needs of the District/County and the
Confidential Employee is thereby placed in jeopardy of losing vacation leave, or (b) when a Confidential
Employee has pre-scheduted an amount of vacation time at least equal to the amount of accrual over 160 hours
that the Confidential Employee would accrue by December 31. Such excess carryover is to be utilized within 80
days of approval by the Superintendent or designee.

17.4.1 Confidential Employees assigned to positions that work less than a 12 month calendar, vacation
accrual shali be paid to them in June at the end of the school year.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 25



17.5 Each eligible Confidential Employee shall earn vacation for each regularly paid hour and years of service.

17.6 When a holiday, as defined in this Agreement, occurs during the scheduled vacation of a Confidential
Employee, the Confidential Employee will receive pay at the regular rate of pay for the holiday and shall nothe -~
charged a vacation day for absence on the holiday. :

177 Vacation shall, with the approval of the Employee’s immediate supervisor, be taken at any time during the year
and preferably be scheduled a minimum of five (5) working days prior o the dates requested whenever
possible. Every effort shall be made to enable vacation to be taken at times convenient to the Confidentiat
Employee, consistent with the needs of the service and the workload of the depariment. Vacation may be taken
in units of not less than one quarter (1/4) hour. Earnad vacation shall not become a vested right until completion
of the initial six (6) maonths of employment. {Education Code 45197 Classified Employee)

17.8 Confidential Employees may be granted vacation during the year even though not earned at the time the
vacation is taken. If a Confidental Employee is terminated and had been granted vacation which was not yet
earned at the time of termination, the Employer shall deduct from the Canfidential Emplayee's final pay the
amount which was paid for unearmned vacation taken. (Education Code 45187 Classified Employee)

17.8 Vacation shall be paid at the rate of pay earned at the time the vacation is commenced.

17.10 Upon separation from service, employee shall be entitled to lump sum compensation for all earned, vested and
unused vacation which has not been lost through the operation of this Article, except that Employees who have
not completed six months of employment in regular status shall not be entitled to such compensation.

17.11 The Employer may allow, upon request by the Confidential Employee, to'interrupt or terminate vacation leave in
order to be on ancther type of paid leave without a return 1o active service, provided the Confidential Employee
supplies adequate notice and relevant supporting information regarding the basis for such interruption or
termination.

17.12 All Confidential Employees hired on or after July 1, 2013, shall be subject to the initial six month probationary
period for earned vacation and restrictions as set above,

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 26




ARTICLE 18 RETIREMENT/GOLDEN HANDSHAKE

18.1 Corfidential Employees with a minimum of 25 years of experience five (5} years with the District/County, who
have reached the age of 55, may elect in writing to take advantage of their cheice of one (1) of the following
offers:

A, One {1) year of retiree health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as required by health care provider) for
medical, dental and vision plans for the retiree, spouse and family, or

B. $13,840.50 A lump sum dollar amaunt per year {taxable} for the term of one (1) year.

This Golden Handshake is contingent upon formal written notification of retirement /resignation being submitted
on or before March 31% of the last year of service. This offer must be formalized to show a savings tc the
employer on a case-by-case basis.”

Sunset Early Retirement/Golden Handshake from the collective bargaining agreement, effective July 1, 2012:
1.0 FTE Employees in current active status as of July 1, 2012, shall be grandfathered into the early retirement/golden handshake
aption offered through July 1, 2012, and remain eligible until CalPERS retirement and separation from District/County empioyment.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 27



ARTICLE 19

WAGES

19.1

19.2

19.3

194

19.5

19.6

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015

Classifications shall have any range adjustments made effective with the first full payrol} period after ratification
of this Agreement or a payroll period as mutually agreed upen by both parties,

18.1.1  Confidential Employees shal be paid in accerdance with the current Salary Schedule(s)
18.1.2 All Confidential Employees are paid monthly.

Confidential Employees may agree to contribute a portion of histher salary on a pretax basis for the qualified
IRS-sanctioned veoluntary elective deferrals, to include but not limited to, Section 125 Plans {Health Savings
Accounts, Flexible Spending Accounts, Accident Insurance, Dependent Care Assistance, etc), 403{b) program
(Tax Sheltered Annuity) etc.

19.21 The Confidential Employee is responsible for setting up and signing the legal documents to establish
the payroll deductions. Confidential Employee shall complete a 403(b) Salary Reduction Agreement
through the District/County business office.

Confidential Employees may agree to contribute a portion of hisiher salary for purposes other than described in
19.2. A Salary Reduction Agreement shail be completed by the Confidential Employee.

Health and Welfare benefit insurance premium deductions shali be deducted from menthly payroll according o
the premium cost of the selected benefit plan,

Initial placement on the salary schedule

The Governing Board or the County Superintendent of Schools retains the authority to specify the salary of new
positions and io determine the creditto be awarded for piacement on an existing salary schedule.

A. Up to two {2) years credit for related experience within the past ten {10) years beyond the minimum
requirement,

B. The date for determining a Confidential Employee’s eligibility for a “step” increase shall be July 1.

C. Avyear of service is defined as the number of hours an Employee would normally work in the position
between July 1* and the following June 30™

District/County Employer shall pay each qualifying Confidential Employee’s contribution to the PERS system;
Employer and Employee's contribution.

Page 28



ARTICLE 20  DISCIPLINARY ACTION

20.1 Persons employed in Canfidential service shall be subject to Classified service disciplinary actions and appeals
per Education Code(s).

2 Causes for Disciplinary Acticn (Ed. Code 844010, 45123, 45124 and 45303)

Persons employed in the Canfidential service may be suspended, demated, or dismissed for any of the
following causes. Specific instances must be set forth as to any of the causes enumerated.

A Incompetency — A pattern of below standard work performance

B Inefficiency — The continued inabiiity to perform the assigned duties of the position

C. Insubordination — Knowingly refusing to perform lawful and reasonable assigned duties

D Inattention ta or Dereliction of Duty —A pattern of continued neglect or dereliction (disregard) in the
performance of assigned duties

E.  Willful and persistent viclation of the Education Ccde, of rules and regulations, and/or procedures
adopted by Siera-Plumas Board of Education and Sierra County Superintendent of Schools when such
precedures are made known to the Employee in writing

F. Knowingly falsifying or withholding any material information supplied on application forms and
employment records

G.  Possession of open aleoholic beverages on District/County property, or being intoxicated while on duty

H.  The use or pcssession while on duty of illegal drugs

I Arrested, being formally charged, and convicted on a sex offense as defined the Education Code §44010
or determination of as a sexual psychopath pursuant to the Education Code 45124

J. Arrested, being formally charged, and convicted of a narcotics offense as defined in Education Code

§44010
K. Engaging in political activities during assigned hours of duty
Conviction of a crime involving moral turpitude (behavior that is dishonest or immoral)
M.  Carrying out an unprovoked physical attack cn a pupil, a member of the public, another District/County
Employee during assigned hours of duty
Repeated unexcused absence or tardiness, abuse of leave privileges, or absence without notification
Abandonment of position — Failure to report to duty for three (3) consecutive working days without
notification or permission (except in the case of a dire emergency)
P. Viofation of local, state or federal law which results in the cancellation or suspension of a license required
for the performance of the assigned duties
Q. Dishonesty, theft, willful misuse for personal gain, and/or willful destruction of District/County property.

-

o2

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 29




ARTICLE21  LAYOFF PROCEDURES

211 Persons employed in the Confidential service are subject to Classified service layoff procedures as outlined in
Education Code(s).

21.2 Procedure Regarding Layoff (Education Codes §45115, 45117, 45308) , I

A.  When classified employees are laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, layoff shall be made in inverse order
of seniority in the class in which the fayoff occurs. The employee who has been employed the shortest time
in the class, plus higher classes, shall be considered to have least senicrity, and therefore, shall be laid off
first.

B. The names of permanent and probationary employees thus laid off shall be placed upon the reempioyment
list for the class from which they were laid off. Names on the reemployment list shall be in the relative order
of seniority. Persons on this list shall remain eligible for a period of 39 months from the day of layoff.

C. For purposes of this section “Senicrity” is determinad by the length of service beginning with the current
continuous employment period. Nothing contained in this section shall preclude the granting of “length of
service” credit for time spent on military leave of absence, or unpaid illness ieave or unpaid industrial
accident leave.

D. Empioyees subject to layoff shall be given notification no less than 60 days prior to the date of the layoff, at
which time they will be given written notice of their displacement rights and reemployment rights.

21.3 Rights of Employees Laid Off for Lack of Work or Funds
Permanent Emplcyees in the Confidential service have the following rights:

A, Bumping — A permanent Employee in the Confidential service who is laid off from a class and who has
previous service in an equal or lower class shall have the right to bump an Employee with less seniority in
that class. Seniority shall include the total of the previous service in the equal or lower class plus service in. .
the class from which layoff accurs and in higher classes.

B. Reemployment — An Employee shall be eligible tc be reemployed for a pericd of 39 moﬁths and shall be
reemployed in preference to new applicants and shall have the right to participate in promaotional
examinations within such period.

C. Voluntary Demetion or Voluntary Reduction — An Employee who takes voluntary demaotions or voluntary
reductions in assigned time in lieu of layoff or to remain in their present positions rather than be reclassified
or reassigned, shall be granted the same rights as persons laid off and shall retain eligibility to be
considered for reemployment for an additional period of up to 24 menths provided that the same tests of
fitness under which they qualified for appointment to the class stilt apply.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 30



ARTICLE 22

PERSONNEL FOLDER

221

22.3

224

226

226

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015

The Personnel Depariment of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Sierra County Office of
Education shall maintain all permanent records for all Confidential Employees in the personnel file.

Materials in personnel files of Confidential Employees which may serve as a basis for affecting the status of
their employment are to be made available for the person invalved.

Such material is not to include ratings, reports or records which (1) were obtained prior to the employment of the
person involved, (2) were prepared by identifiable examination committee members, or (3} were obtained in
connection with a promectional examination.

Every Confidential Employee shalt have the right to inspect such materials upon request, provided that the
request is made for a time such person is not actually required to render services to the Employer.

Information of a derogatory nature shall not be entered or filed uniess and until the Confidential Employee is
given notice and an opportunity to review and comment thereon.

The Confidentiai Employee shall be notified of the data when any derogatery material will be placed in the
perscnnel file. The Confidential Employee shall have the right to enter, and have attached to any such
derogatory statement, hisfher own comments thereon. The Cenfidential Employee shall be given an
opportunity during the werk day when the Confidential Employee is not responsible to be at hisfher work station,
te review and prepare his/her response, without loss of compensation.

Page 31



ARTICLE 23

SAFETY

231

232

23.3

234

235

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015

The Employer shall provide safe, healthy and sanitary warking conditions for all Employees of the
District/‘County and will provide a continuous administrative monitoring of working conditions and will make
carrections of any unsafe cr hazardous conditions.

Both the Employer and Confidential Employees agree that the responsibility for safe working conditions is that
of the Employer, and the responsibility for maintenance of safe procedures and practices is that of the
Employee.

Confidential Employees shall not be required to work under unsafe or unhealthy conditions or perform tasks
which may endanger their health or safety.

Any Confidential Employee who observes a working condition which is believed to be unsafe or unheaithy shall
report such condition to the apprepriate administrator or supervisor. The administrater will respond as soon as
possible.

One (1) Confidential Employee shali represent and participate in the Health and Safety Committee mestings. A
Confidential Employee who is a member of the Committee shall be allowed release time to carry out their
obligations under this Article.

Page 32



ARTICLE 24

EMPLOYER’S RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

241

The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of
Schools and Sierra County Board of Education, retain, solely and exclusively, all the rights, powers and
authority exercised or held prior to the execution of this Agreement. Except as limited by the terms of this
Agreement or as otherwise required by state law, the rights, powers and authority retained solely and
exclusively by the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board and the Sierra County
Superintendent of Schoals and Sierra County Board of Education, and not abridged herein, inciuded, but are
not fimited to the following:

To manage and divect its business and personnel except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to
determine the mission of its departments, building facilities and operations except as limited by the terms of this
Agreement; to create, change or combine positions, departments and facilities in who or part except as limited
by the terms of this Agreement; to subcontract accordingly to law, abolish jobs, or discontinue work for lack of
funds or lack of work except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to determine the number of Employees
by the terms of this Agreement; to determine the number of Employees needed, to hire, transfer, promote, and
maintain work standards, schedules of operation and reasonable work load except as imited by the terms of
this Agreement; to specify or assign werk requirements and require overtime except as limited by the terms of
this Agreement; to schedute working hours and shifts except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to adopt
rules of conduct and penalties for violation therecf except as limited by the terms of this Agreement; to
determine the methods, processes, means and place of praviding services and to take whatever action
necessary to prepare for and operate in an emergency which is defined as a situation in which the lives and /or
safety of students or Employees are endangered; a financial crises in which the Sterra-Plumas Joint Unified
School District Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of
Education is unable to fund mandated expenses; a situation in which it would be impossible to conduct the
normal business of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Scheol District Governing Board and the Sierra County
Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of Education provided the exercise of the forgoing does not
conflict or viclate the lawful rights of Confidential Employees. Nething in this Article shall be construed to limit,
amend, decrease, revoke or otherwise modify the rights vested in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
District Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of
Education by any law regulating, authorizing or empowering the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Schooi District
Governing Board and the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of Education tc act
or refrain from acting except as limited by the terms of this Agreement.

Page 33

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015



ARTICLE 25 PEACEFUL PERFORMANCE

251 During the life of this Agreement, the Confidential Employees agree that the Confidential Employees will not
strike, slowdown or participate in a work-stoppage or sick-out. Likewise, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Schoal
District Governing Board and the Sierra Caunty Superintendent of Schools and Sierra County Board of '
Education agrees not to lock out the Confidential Employees.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 34



APPENDIX A
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT/! SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEE GRIEVANCE FORM

SRIEVANCE REPORT (Form) Date Filed:
Employee Association " Appropriate Administrator Employer
Name of Aggrieved Person (print) Schoaol Supervisor

Level One: Submit to Immediate Supervisor

A Date grievance occurred (or was discovered):

B. Section(s) of coniract, regulations, etc., involved in this grievance (Be specific.):
C. Statement of grievance*®

D. Action Requested”

E. Supervisor responded on (date):

Signature of Employee Date

Level Two: Submit to District or County Superintendent (Employer)

A

Signature of Employee Date Date Employer Rec'd Grievance Form
B. Wiritten response by Employer*

Signature of Employer Date

Level Three: Submit to District Governing Board

A
Signature of Emplayee Date
B.
Date Board Received Grievance Form
C. Written response and/or award to Confidential Employee
Signature of Governing Board President Date
n‘ addnt:onal space IS needed attach add[tlonal sheets Doc: ConfidentialGrisvance form

SIERRA PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 35




SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST./.SIERRA COE Appendix B
Performance Evaluation for Confidential Emplovees

Permanent
Prcbationary
FLast Name First Name Substitate
Classification Title School or Department
: Evaluation Period _to Check only those factors which apply to employee’ s position

QUALITY I. Performs duties in 2n accepiable manoer

2. Completes work with a minimuwm of errors

QUANTITY 3. Compictes the work reguired in the allotted time

WORK HABITS AND ATTITUDES 4. Orpanizes work

| 3 3. Uses good judgment in the performance of work

. Learns and applies new ideas, procedures, rules and teclimiques

. Demonstrazes an interest in the work performed

6
7
8. Complies with rules, regulations, and policies
9

. Accepts job responsibilities

PUNCTUALITY - 10, Complies with assigned hours of work and appointment schedules -

DEPENDABILITY 11, Astends to duties in the absence of supervision

12. Follaws written and oral instructions in the performance of job duties

REELATIONSHIPS WITH PEOPLE 13. Works effectively with other employees

14. Works effectively with pupils

15. Works effectively with public

PERSONAL APPEARANCE 16. Dresses appropriately amd maintains a nicat and clean appearance

SUPERVISORY ABILITY 17. Plans and directs the work of others
{Only use for cmployees who supervise others)

SAFLTY 18. Maintains a clean and safe work area

19, Complies with appropiiate safety standards and rules

ADDITIONAL FACTORS 20. Factors not specificatly considered above (Please identify)
OVERALL WORK PERFORMANCE

SPECIFIC SUGGESTIONS TO AID EMPLOYEE IN IMPROVING PERFORMANCE: (To be discussed by supervisor with employeg)

Evalustor/Employee comiments on Work Performance (Optional)

Signature of Supervisor Title Date

- Signature of Reviewer Title Date

it is understood that, in signing the Performance Evaluation form, the employee acknowledges having seen and discussed the report.

doc:ps] forms/confidential evaluation form Signature of Employee




APPENDIX C

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Health and Welfare Premium Payment Agreement

RETIREE NAME: DATE OF RETIREMENT:

A. Retired Employees who are covered by the District/SCOE health plan at the time of their retirement may
continue the health, vision and dental benefit prograrm at his/her own expense on a tiered rate structure.
Retirees shall pay all the premiums, dues, and other charges, including any increase in premiums for the
duration of his/her enrollmenti. Eligible retirees andfor covered dependents must secure Medicare Part A and
Part B. Retirees who discontinue coverage cannot re-enroll under the District/SCOE health plans.

B. Employees who are granted the Retirement/Golden Handshake by the Employer for one (1) year of retiree
health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as required by health care provider) for medical, dental and
vision plans shall be responsible for all premiums in excess of the Employer contributions, dues and other
charges, including any increase in premiums for the duration of hisfher enrollment.

C. All premiums are payable to the District or SCOE and due in full no later than the 5" fifth) day of the month
and will be considered delinquent after the 57 (fifth) day. Should the health insurance premium payments
become delinquent for two (2) consecutive months, benefits will be cancelled and reinstatement will not be
allowed.

| have read and understand the provision of this Agreement and agree to sign this authorization.

Retiree Signature: Date:

Doc: Confidential/H3W Payment Agreement Retiree
Z: forms/HEW Payment Agreement Retiree

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES" BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 37




-
i
H

APPENDIY. D

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAYE ACT

Basic Leave Entitlement
EMLA requires covered employers to provide up to 12 weeks of unpaid,
Job-protected keave to eligible emplovees for the following reasons:

- for incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or child birtly,

+ ta care for the employee’s child after bicth, or placement for adoption
or foster care;

« 1o care for the employes’s spouse, son, daughler or patent, whe has
a sericus health condition, or

« for a serious health condition that makes the employee unablg to
perform the employee’s job. ’

Military I'amily Leave Entitlements

Eligible emplovecs whose spouse, son, daughler or parenl is on covered
active duty or call Lo covered active dutly status may use their [2-week
feave entitlement 1o address corfain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying
exigencies may include atiending certain military events, arranging for
aitemative childeare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements,
attending cerain counseling sessions, and attending posi-deployment
reintegration briefings,

FMLA alse includes a spscial leave entitlement that permits eligible
employees to take up to 26 weeks of leave ta care for a covered service-
member during a single 12-monih period. A covered servicemember is:
(1) a currend member af the Armed Forces, including a member of the
Natianal Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment,
recuperation or therapy, Is otherwise in vutpatient status, or is otherwise
on the temposary disabibiy retired list, for a sericus injury or iliness*;
or (2) a veleran who was discharged or released under conditions other
than dishonarable at any time during the five-year period prior to the
first date the ¢ligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the covered
veteran, and who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or
therapy for & serious injury of illness.*

#The FMLA definitions of “sericvs injovy or illness” for
ecurrent servicemembers and veterans are distinct from
the FMLA definition of “serious health condition”.

Benefits and Protections

Buring FMLA leave, the empioyer must mamtain the gmployes’s health
coverage vnder any “group health plan™ on the same terms as1f the
employee had continued to work. Upon retom frony FMLA Jeave, most
eraployees must be restored to their original or equivalent positions
wilk equivalent pay, benefits, and other empleyment lerms.

Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the Joss of any employment benefit
that accrued prior to the start of an employee’s leave,

Eligibility Requirements

Employzes are eligible if they have worked far a covered employer for at
least 12 months, bave 1250 hours of service i the previows 12 months*,
and if at lcast 50 employvess are employed by the employer within 75 miles.

*Special hours of service eligibility requirements apply to
airline flight crew employees.

Definition of Sericus Health Condition

A serions health condilion is an iliness, injury, impairment, or physical
or mental condition that invelves either an overright stay in a medical
care facility, or continuing treatment by 2 health care provider fora
cordhition that either prevents the emplovee fram performing the functions
of the employee’s job, or prevents the qualified Family member [rom
participating in school or eiber daily aciivities.

Suhject 1o certain conditions, the continuing treatment requiremnent may
be met by a perind of incapacity of miore than 3 consecutive calendar days
combined with al Jeast iwe visils to a health care provider or one visit and

a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacily due o pregnancy, or
incapacity due 10 a chronic conditien. Other conditions may meet the
definition of continuing treatment,

Use of Leave

An emplayee does not need 1o use this leave eatitiement io one block.
Leave can be 1zken intermittently or on a reduced leave scheduje when
medically necessary. Employecs must make reazonable efforts to schedule
leave for planned medical freatment so as not 1o anduly disrupt the
emplover's operations, Leave due te qualifying exigencies may alkso be
taken on an intermiftent basis.

Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave

Employees may chooss or employars may reguire use of accrued paid
icave while taking FMLA leave. In order to use paid leave for FMLA
leave, employees must comply with the empleyer’s nermat paid leave
policies,

Employee Responsibilities

Emplovees must provide 30 days advance notice of the need 1o take
FMLA leave when the need is foreseeable. Whea 30 days notice is pot
possibla, the employee must provide notice as soon as practicable and
seneratly must comply with an employer’s normal call-in procedures.

Emplayees must provide sufficient information for the employer to determine
if the Jeave may qualily Tor FMLA protection and the anticipated timing
and duration of the leave. Sufficient infonnation may iaclude that the
employee is unable to perform job functions, the famity member is unable
to perform daily activities, the need for hospitelization or continuing
1reatment by a health care provider, or citcumstances suppotting the need
Yor mil#tary family leave. Employees also must inform the employer if
the requested leave is for « reason for which FMLA leave was previously
taken o cerified, Employees alse may be required to provide a certification
and periodic recertification supperting the nced for leave.

Empleyer Responsibilitics

Covered employers must inform employees requesting leave whether
they are eligible under FMEA, I they are, the notice must specify any
additional infermation required as well as the employees’ rights and
responsibilities. 1f they are not eligible, the employer must provide a
reason for the inetigibility.

Covered employers must inform ermployees H leave will be designated
s FMLA-protected e the amount of Teave counted against the einployes’s
Teave entitloment. 1§ the employer determings that the leave is not
EMLA-protected, the employer st sotify the employes.

Unfawful Acts by Employers
FMLA makes it uniawbul for any employer (o:

- interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any righi provided
uader FMLA; and

» discharge or discriminale against any person for opposing any practice
made unlawful by FMLA ar for invelvement in any proceeding under
or relating 10 FMLA.

Enforcement
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Depastment of Labor
of may bring & privale lawsult against an employer.

EMLA doss not affect any Federal or State Jaw prohibiting discrimination,
or supersede any Stale or jocal law or collectiva bargaining agreement
which provides greater family or medical leave rights.

'MILA section 109 (29 U.5.C. § 2619} requires FMLA
covered employers to post the text of this notice. Regulation
29 C.F.R. § §23.300(a) may require additional disclosures.

For additionat infarmation:
1-866-4US-WAGE (i-866-487-9243) TTY: 1.877-§80-5627
WWWWAGEHOURDOL.GOVY

U.8. Departenent of Labor | Wage and Hour Division

WHD Publication 1420 - Reviset] Eebanary 213




1B

APPENDIX E(4)

Sierra County Office of Education
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Administrative Office

COMPRESSED WORK SCHEDULES (Flex Time}
Description: With the Business Manager’s approval, Administrative Office employees may volunteer
to work a compressed work schedule that reduces their number of workdays per week during the time

when schools are closed. In general, 9/80 and 4/10 schedules may be considered.

Eligibility Criteria: -~ The Business Manger will consider the following criteria when evaluating an
employee’s request to participate in this activity:

= The employee has demonstrated the ability to manage their workload, complete work
assignments, and meet or exceed management’s expectations.

» The position does not require tull-time work-long interaction with department clientele or
coworkers.

» The position does not require that all work associated with the position be done during daylight
hours.

» There is redundancy in existing staffing to compensate for the absence of the employee for one
day a week.

» The productivity of work is not diminished.

» The overall number of department personnel participating in this activity does not reduce
staffing below levels needed to provide excellent public service.

= The overall number of dopartment personnel participating in this activity does not impede the
ability of “other” departments to successfully do their work.

Application Process: To participate in the flextime, the employee completes a Compressed Work
Schedule Agreement.

Menitoring: The Business Manager will be responsible for monitoring the employee’s work. At any
time the participating employee, supervisor, or department head may initiate changes to or termination

ofthe compressed work schedule.

Related Issues: All schedules approved under this activity must comply with the requirements of the
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

ZAOFfice Procedures\Compressed Flex Time 9-80.doc



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHGOL DISTRICT

9/80 FLEX SCHEDULE REQUEST/AUTHORIZATION FORM

Employee Name: l.ocation;

Supervisar's Name: Date:

Number of hours you are currently scheduled to work per week:

Date you would ke to start your flex schedule:

1. This Flex Schedule involves warking eight (8} days of nine hours and ane {1) day of eight hours.

2. The wark hours for each day that my workweek splits will split during the day, four hours after my
start time. The morning hours will go to the previous workweek and the afternoon hours will go to
the next workweek.

3. should my Flex Day fall or: a Holiday, the Flex Day will be taken the day immediately following or ‘
immediately preceding the Holiday whichever falls into the correct workwesk not exceeding forty ‘
{40) hours per workweek,

4.  Scheduled Hours:

a.  Iwillwork AM/PM to AM/PM on the nine hour days
(circte AM or PM}

b, | wilt work AM/PM to AM/PM on the eight hour days
{circle AM or PM)

€. My Flex Day will be:

d. My eight {8} hour day will be:

e, My lunch period will be minutes each day.

Al terms and conditions have been discussed and the employee understands and agrees to all tarms listed above
by signing and dating this form.

Employee Signature: Date:

Sugpervisor Signature: Date:

PO, BOX 955 # 109 BECKWITH ROAD * LOYALTON, CA 90118
1530 993-1660 * FAX 5301 993-0828




SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

P.0.Box 955 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Phone: (530) 993-166!
* 19 Beckwith Road FAX: (530)993-082¢
yalton, CA 56118 Email: mgrant@spjusd.ory

Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D.

Superintendent

APPENDIX F

EMPLOYEE 403(b) BENEFIT ELECTION FEE

I wish to be an active participant in a Tax Sheltered Annuity (TSA) program established by
my Employer so that | may obtain the benefit of Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). |
understand that effective January 1, 2009, due to IRS regulations; my employer has entered
into an agreement with a third party provider (Central Valley Support Services) at a cost of
$2.50 per active participant. Furthermore, pursuant to SCOE and S-PJUSD Resolutions 08-
004 and 08-008, respectively, my Employer is transferring this fee to active participants.

For this purpose, until further notice, | authorize my Employer to deduct from my salary the
current fee of $2.50 monthly.

Print Name

Signature Date

doc:pst forms/403bBenefit Election fee

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 41



APPERDIXF (1)

Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District
403(b) Salary Reduction Agreement

Employee Information:

MNamae: Social Security Number -
Address: City & Zip:
Date of Birth: Date of Hire: Daytime Phone:
Effective Date: 7| Thisis aninitial agreement | This agreement supersedes a previous agreement

Contribution Information: (Checkall thatapply}

[T1 tnitiate New Salary Reduction {check only if not currently participating}

lease deduct the tatal amount of § per pay period.

[] Change Salary Reduction {this is to change the amount of your existing 403k}

This is a notification to change the amount of my Salary Reduction from $ to 3

[ Change Service Provider(s)

This is a notification 1o change my Service Provider{s} from

to:

[} Terminate Salary Reduction

Please discontinue my Salary Reduction with the following Service Provider(s)

and

[} Terminate ALL Salary Reductions

Please check the appropriate number of deductions to be taken per calendar year.

{3 10 Deductions [ 11 Deductions 73 12 Deductions

Service Provider and Amount {this will be a listing of alf amonnts to il Service Providers)

Amount Service Provider Name 303b Compare Vandor ID
§
$
$
5
Agreement:

The above named Employre agrees to modify his/her salary as indicated above, SPIUSD agrees to contribute this amaunt on the
Employees behalf into the annuity or costodial accoumis seleciad by the Employee. Itis intended that the requirements of alj
applicable State or Federal iIncome 1ax miles and regulations {Appliceble Law} will be met. The Employen understands and

agrees 10 he Tollowing: 1) this Salarv Reduction Agreement is legally biading and Trrevocable with respeet 10 amounts paid

or available while this agreement is in effect; 2) this Salary Reduction Agresment may be lerminated at any me with respect

10 amounts not yet paid or avalable, and that a termination request is permanent and ramaing in effect untif » new Salacy Reduction
Agreement is submitted; and 3) this Salary Reduction Agreement may be chanped with respeet 1o amounts not yet paid or available
in accordance with the Employers administration progedures.

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015



APPENDIX F(2)}

The Employes agrees to indemnify and hold SPHISD harmiess against any and all actions, claims and demands whatsoever that may arisc
from the purchase of annuities or custodial accounts in this 403(b) Program. The Employee acknowledges that SPIUSD bas made no
representation regarding the advisability, appropriateness or tax consequences of the purchase of the anneity and/or custodial account
described herein, The Empioyee agrees SPJUSID shall have so liability whatsoever for any and all losses suffered by the Employee with
regard to histher selection of the annuity and/or custodial account; iis terms; the selection of the insurance company or regulated
investmerrt company: the solvency of, operation of or benefits provided by said inserance company or regulated investment compary;

or histher selection and purchase of shares of regulated investment companies. Nothing herein shall affect the terms of employment
between SPIUSD and Employce. This agreement supersedes all prior Salary Reduction Agreements and shall automatically terminate if
Employees employment is terminated,

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Read this mformation before you complete a Salary Reduction Agreement.

1. SPJUSD does not choose the annuity contract or custodial account in which the Employees contributions are invested.

2. The Employee is responsible for setting up and signing the legal documents to establish their annuity contract or custodial

accourt. The Employee, not SPFUSD, is to be identified as the coniract/certificate holder or account holder.

3. In order for the Employee to receive the expected tax resulis, the annuity contract or custadial account established must meet the
requirements of Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is solely the Employces responsibility to establish the proper type

of eontract or account for this purpose.

4. The Employee is responsible for naming a death beneficiary under their annuity contract or custodial account. This is normally
done at the time the contract or account is cstablished, although the designation should be reviewed from time to time.

5. The Employee is responsible for all distributions and any other transactions with the insurance company or investment company.
The Employee or their authorized representative must contact CVSS regarding loans, transfers and exchanges to approved praviders,
beginning distributions, Hardship Withdrawal requests or (o handle any other transactions,

6. Central Valley Support Services has been named the administrator of this 403(b) Program. Their responsibitity is 1o ensure
compliance of SPYUSDYs 403(b) plan and that the Employee's contributions are within the IRC Sections of 402{g), 403(b), 415¢c) and
414(v) guidelines.

7. The Employee agrees that SPTUSD and CVSS shall have no liability whatsoever for any loss suffered by the Employee with regard
lo the selection ol a provider and ils investinent aptions, or the soivency, eperation of, of bencfits provided by said provider;

nor Hability for any loss suffered by Employec by reason of the transmittal of any funds pursuant to this or any other agreement.

Employee Signature:

I certify that I have read this complete agreement. I understand my responsibilities as an Employes under this Program
and I request that SPTUSD take the action specified in this agreement. I understand that all rights snder the annuity or
custodial account established by me under the Program are enforceable solely by me, my beneficiary or my authorized
representative.

Empioyee Signature: Date:

Ackoowledgement and Representation of Sales Agent/Representative:

T agree to comply with all pertinent directives regarding solicitation of SPTUSD Employees. Furthermore, I agree to
indemuify and hold harmless SPIUSD, any member of the governing board, Central Valley Support Services (CVSS) and the
Employee participating in the 403(b) Program against any clatms arising from my solicitation of the said Employee.

Agent Signature: Dater
Agent Name: Phone:
Agent Email:

Sierra Plumas Jeint Unified School Distriet (or CVSS) Sigmature:

Name:

Signature: Date;

Title:

Sierra Plumas Office’s plan administrator, CVSS will be processing this Salary Reduction Agreement ,
Please fax this completed form to our toll-free secure fax line at 800-853-5075, Qur mailing address is; CVSS 2440

Stanwell Dr. Suite A Concord, CA 94520. Any questions regarding this form or any other guestions regarding 403(b),

call us at 877-734-6653 or visit us on the web at www.cvsupportservices.org.

NFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES' BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015

Page 43



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Appendix G
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Salary Reduction Agreement (other than 403b)

Employee Information:

Name: SSN:

Address: City & Zip:

Date of Birth: Daytime FPhcne: Mobile Phone:

EFFECTIVE DATE: (1 This is an initizl agreement [T This agreement supersedes a pravious
agreeament

(] Initiate New Salary Reduction

Deduct the total amount of $ per pay period

Service Provider (Name of Company to whom Salary Reduction is remitted):

Name; Address:

Telephone Number:

Ll Change Salary Reduction

This is netification to change the amount of my Salary Reduction from to & per month

Service Provider: (Name of Company to whom Salary Reduction is remitted):

Name; Address:

Telephone Number:

L) Terminate Salary Reduction(s)

Biscontinue my Salary Reduction with the following Service Provider(s): 1)

2)

[J Terminate ALL Salary Reductions

Please check the appropriate number of deductions to be taken per calendar year:

I L] 10 Deductions L] 11 Deductions L1 12 Deductions

Agreement: The above named Employee agrees to modify hisfher salary schedule as indicated above. District/County agrees to
contribute this amount on the Employee’s behalf. 1t is intended that the requirements of all applicable State or Federal tax rules and
regulations will be met. The Employee understand and agrees to the following: 1) this Salary Reduction Agreement is legally binding
and irrevocable with respect to amounts paid or available while this agreement is in effect; 2) this Salary Reduction Agreement may
be terminated at any time with respect to amounts not yet paid or available, and that a termination request is permanent and remains
in effect until a New Salary Reduction Agreement is submitted; and 3) this Salary Reduction Agreement may be changed with respect
to amounts not yet paid or available in accordance with the Employers administration procedures.

Employee’s Signature Date

SIERRA-PLUMAS/SCOE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2013-2015 Page 44




payuns Ages juog ng xipuaddy\sanpayeg AMERSLZ

a9k0jdwa palyssein) 0] [BHUAPLUCT WO payisseoal siem suoiised Aejaiag uoddng Aunod 3 Aeleioeg 1004og ‘sallly mau 10} ‘Z1L0Z ‘1 Anr aAoayd.

Yev'6g EPSLE 102°6E 9S0'vE SOG'ZE 020'te  £ge'se ¥1£'8¢ LOBOZ L¥9'6Z EN”E
$86'¢ ELr'e (Rerats 960'¢ 566'2 028'z £69'7 y45'C Lst'e RN 2022 Aag Woddng Aluned

o9v9'¢LL  BEL'OLL G680l  006'66 IEL'GB 665'06 98’98 zLLT8 68Z'82 8ESVL 266'04
2£9'6 8/1'6 1728 Gee's 8264 088°L 161’2 8r8'9 2es'e Lie'e 916°¢ ebeuey ssaulsng

1G6'19 Lo0'6S LBL'9G GlG'eS 84606 \Ws'sy ozZ'oy 6Z0'FY GEG'LY L¥6'6E 9e0'8¢e
£9L’s LiB'F £89'Y 09F't evz'y SY0'y z68'e 699°€ g67'c ze'e 0Li'e UBI2UYIa ] [BUUOSIS]

E61'GE 15828 vee'os 1€6'2¥ ¥So'Gy osr'ey oLy Ly BEY'BE 098°/e pLl'se 890°vE
¥Eo'v vor'v PeL'y GEB6'E GOB'E £29'C LSP'E 98Z't oEl'e 186°C 682 1l uelduyoa | Juncody
W JTNUIHDS AYTVS TVELINIAIEINGI NOIIVINd3d 30 301340 ALNNOD vaddis _

Wily  Se%P  8SLZ¢  ZZL0F  2I8'8E  S§60LS |2y'se 0zR'EE 0812 VY0O'0E €006 UBIoLce |
826'¢ Wpl'E £96°E vBEE 6€2'S 180°S 2862 g18'2 £89'Z 0882 LW Buiunoooy
gLE'8y  oL0'or  veg'st 88t 08L'BE 188'ZE $GDOE BEEVE  ZOLTE  ShLIE  Z99'8Z uejsissy
9z0'v se8'e ze9'e 8/¥'e cle'e gol'e S00'E 198°C STAN GBS’ Ziv'e anBsIILLPY
FIVPBE  EPGLE L9L'6E  9S0'PE  GOS'ZTE  0Z0'lE  €29'62 y18'82 196'9Z \Wo'sz  222'%2

¥85'E cLP'e (AT 960°¢ GEH'T 0282 £69°¢ v158'C 1592 LEE'E 1022 Apjaioeg 1004og
sIedA Gz  siesh gz  SIE9A Gl

ydeig  rdeig | deg Hdolg odoig  4daig 3 dayg adsis opdalg  gdaig y dojg - NOLLISOd
_ TINOIHI5 AV TYS TYILNIAIANOT DIUISIA 100H5 A3 N LNIOT SYWTTId-vaa3is
6002 - 8002

saafojdwg [enuapyuos 1o} ainpayog Alejeg
L1810 TOQHOS QRJINND LNIOT SV Id-YHYEIS

H XIAN3dd¥






ADMINISTRATION COMPLETION OF BARGAINING



AGREEMENT
between the
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATION EMPLOYEES
and the
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD
and the
SIERRA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

1. Compensation:

The parties agree to increase the salary schedule by a total of six and a half percent
(6.5%). The increase shall take place as follows:

Effective July 1, 2013, the District and County shall increase each cell of the
current 2012-2013 salary schedule by four and a half percent (4.5%) for all employees
currently in active work status. Retroactive checks shall be issued for unit members
employed on the date of the ratification of this Agreement and shall be issued with the
January 2014 payroli.

Effective July 1, 2014, the District and County shall increase each cell of the
2013-2014 salary schedule by an additional two percent (2%) for a total of six and a half
percent (6.5%) per 2013-2014 negotiated Agreement

Nothing shall preclude the parties from meeting and negotiating by mutual consent.

Accepted and Ratified Accepted and Adopted
For the Administration Employees: For the Employer:
Marla Stock, Representative Date Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D, Superintendent Date

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierra County Office of Education

Michael Moore, President Date Allen Wright, President Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Sierra County Board of Education
District Governing Board

Date presented to the Governing Board:

Date adopted by the Governing Board:

z: Negotiations/ 2013-14 Negotiations/ Administrative Completion of Bargaining2(13-14
w

Negotiations: Administration COMPLETION OF BARGAINING 2013-2014 Page 1




MANAGEMENT COMPLETION OF BARGAINING



AGREEMENT
between the

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES
and the
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD
and the
SIERRA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

1. Compensation:

The parties agree to increase the salary schedule by a total of six and a half percent
(6.5%). The increase shall take place as follows:

Effective July 1, 2013, the District and County shall increase each cell of the
current 2012-2013 salary schedule by four and a half percent (4.5%) for all employees
currently in active work status. Retroactive checks shall be issued for unit members
employed on the date of the ratification of this Agreement and shall be issued with the
January 2014 payroll.

Effective July 1, 2014, the District and County shall increase each cell of the
2013-2014 salary schedule by an additional two percent (2%) for a total of six and a half
percent (6.5%) per 2013-2014 negotiated Agreement

Nothing shall preclude the parties from meeting and negotiating by mutual consent.

Accepted and Ratified Accepted and Adopted
For the Management Employees: For the Employer:
Biaine Donnelly, Representative  Date Merrilt M. Grant, Ed.D, Superintendent Date

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Sierra County Office of Education

Michael Moore, President Date Allen Wright, President Date
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Sierra County Board of Education
District Governing Board

Date presented to the Governing Board:

Date adopted by the Governing Board:

W

Negotiations: Management COMPLETION OF BARGAINING 2013-2014 Page 1




FSingletonAumanec

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, CPA, MiSAcc

October 5, 2013

To the Board of Directors
Sierra County Office of Education

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Sierra County Office of Education for the year ended June 30, 2013. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter. Professional standards
also reguire that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Sierra County Office of Education are described in Note A to the financial statements.
No new accounting policies were adopted during 2012/2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. Al significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensitive estimate affecting the County Office’s financial statements was:

Management's estimate of the ultimate collectability of receivables from the State of California is
based on currently known state budgets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the collectability of receivables from the State of California in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of Related Party Transactions in Note L to the financial statements
Difficufties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management
has corrected ali such misstatements.

Susanville: Chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax:530.257.8876 WWW,s3-cpas.com 530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
COUNTY OF SIERRA
SIERRAVILLE, CALIFORNIA

AUDIT REPORT
JUNE 30, 2013

SingletonAumanec

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants



Infroductory Section



Sierra County Office of Education
Audit Report
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Exhibit/Table

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUItOr'S REPOM.......c.oviiiieierirr et 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information).................. 4

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements:

StatemMent Of NEt POSHION. .. ..ciieoeeit e eeeee et ee e tec e e s eebt e saa s er e e sann e s s esis e s encne e 11 Exhibit A-1
StALEMENT Of ACTVITIES ...t ieereeeeeeetenit ettt e eeeteeeeeeae e erreersaassasanes s nssansssbssbasstresasennnons 12 Exhibit A-2
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental FUNAS.......cccoveiie oo 13 Exhibit A-3
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net POSHION ... 14 Exhibit A-4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental FUNAS....... oo, 15 Exhibit A-5
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities.................... 16 Exhibit A-6
Notes to the Financial StatemMeENIS ......eiiceeeceieeeee e c s st 17

Required Supplementary Information:
Budgetary Comparison Schedules:
(ET=Ya1= 122 LR =101 2 Lo DUUU TS PO P POPO PP PPPPPTOROPE 29 Exhibit B-1

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

Local Education Agency Organization STrUCIUIe........ .ot 30
Schedule of Average Daily AENAANCE......coiiireii e 31 Table C-1
Schedule of INSHUCHONAL TIMI ... v eieeee ettt e ete et eice e sie s e ee s sie s st sb st e st sannnaneas 32 Table C-2
Schedule of Financial Trends and ANAlYSiS.......ccveveriirerriiimi et 33  Table C-3
Reconcitiation of Annual Financial and Budget Report

With Audited Financial StatementS. ......ocvvveriricr et 34 Table C-4
Schedule of Charter SCHOOIS.....ii e cee e eeeeste ettt e st s e 35 Table C-5
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards ... 36  Table C-6
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards...........ccooeieericiinmnninn 37

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards...............cccoeioiiiieiienneie e 38
Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal

Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133......cooiiiens 40
Independent Auditor's Report on State ComplianCe. ... 42
Schedule of Findings and Questioned COSES ..o 44
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings.....c.oovoeiniii 48

(070 0= o (V=N Vox1T0) A T A= L FOTTTU U SO NPOPPPPP PP 49



Financial Section



PSingletonAumane

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, CPA, MSAcc

In ndent Auditor's Repor

To the Board of Trustees
Sierra County Office of Education
Sierraville, California 96126

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Sierra County Office of Education ("the County Office of
Education”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the County Office of Education’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County Office of Education's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County Office of Education’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Susanville:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130
530.257.1040 Fax:530.257.8876

sa@sa-cpas.com
WWW.sa-cpas.com

1

Chester:
PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Sierra County Office of Education as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information identified as Required Supplementary
Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Sierra County Office of Education’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U. S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits oi States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplementary information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State's audit guide, Standards and
Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13, published by the
Education Audit Appeals Panel, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The other supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information, except for that portion labeled "unaudited" on
which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. in our opinion, the other supplementary information and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 5,
2013 on our consideration of Sierra County Office of Education's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Sierra County Office of Education's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

L5, Pc.
/
SingletoAuman PC

Susanville, CA
October 5, 2013



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2013

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of Sierra County Office of Education's (County Office) financial
performance provides an overview of the County Office’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013. It should be read in conjunction with the County Office’s financial statements (including
notes and supplementary information), which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

O Total net position was $2,281,477 at June 30, 2013; this was a decrease of $11,733 over the
prior year. The decrease in net assets was due to instructional expenditures offset by Revenue
Limit Revenue.

Overall revenues were $1,848,965, which was less than expenses of $1,860,698 by $11,733.

Q The general fund reported a fund balance this year of $1,974,523; this was an increase of
48,594 over prior year. This increase was mostly due to reduction of expenditures.

Q Long-term debt increased of $13,853 was due to an increase for Other Post Employment
Benefits (OPEB).

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide
a comprehensive overview of the County Office. The basic financial statements are comprised of two
kinds of statements that present financial information from different perspectives:

0 Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both
short-term and long-term information about the entity’s overalt financial position.

O Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the County Office
operations in more detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

* Governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in
the short term as well as what remains for future spending. -

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial statements. A comparison of
the County Office’s budget for the year is included.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the County Office as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets
includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of activities regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the County Office’s net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets, the difference between the assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the
County Office’s financial health or position.

a Over time, increases or decreases in the County Office's net assets are an indicator of whether
its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

4



O To assess the overall health of the County Office, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial
factors such as changes in enroliment, changes in the property tax base, changes in program
funding by the Federal and State governments, and condition of facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the County Office include governmental activities. Most of
the County Office’s basic services are included here, such as regular education, food service,
maintenance and general administration. Revenue limit funding and federal and state grants finance
most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County Office’s most
significant funds-not the County Office as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the County Office
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds are
required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. The Board of Trustees establishes other
funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that the County Office is meeting
legal responsibilities for using certain revenues. The County Office has two kinds of funds:

a0 Governmental funds - Most of the County Office’s basic services are included in governmental
funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view
that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the County Office’s programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the government funds statements that explains the
relationship (or differences) between them.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position
The County Office’s combined net position was $2,281,477 at June 30, 2013. See Table 1.

Many factors contributed to the change in net position.



Table 1:

Net Assets
Total Percentage
Governmentai Activities Change
2013 2012 2013-2012

Assets

Deposits and Investments $ 1,898,902 $ 1,935,435 -1.89%

Accounts Receivable 2,000 - 100.00%

Due from Grantor Governments 378,119 302,245 25.10%

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated

Depreciation 362,601 409,075 -11.36%

TOTAL ASSETS 2,641,622 2,646,755 -0.19%
Liabilities

Current 304,498 339,481 -10.30%

Long-Term Debt 55,647 14,064 295.67%
TOTAL LIABILITIES 360,145 353,545 1.87%
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 362,601 409,075 -11.36%

Restricted 12,091 12,271 -1.47%

Unrestricted (deficit) 1,906,785 1,871,864 1.87%
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 2,281,477 $ 2,293,210 -0.51%

Changes in Net Assets

The County Office’s total revenues were $1,848,965. Revenue Limit and property taxes account for
26.4% of total revenue. Federal and state aid for specific programs account for another 58.3% of total
revenues. Revenues increased from the prior year due to the revenue limit funding of three opportunity
programs.

The total cost of all programs and services was $1,860,698. The County Office’s expenses are
predominately related to educating and caring for students 38.6%. Administrative activities accounted
for just 25.1% of total costs. The remaining expenses were for plant services (maintenance and
operations), community services, ancillary services, and other outgo. Program expenses decreased
from the prior year mainly due to reduction of Instruction and Instructional-Related services.



Table 2:
Changes in Net Assets

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Operating Grants & Contributions
General Revenues
Revenue Limit
Federal & State Aid
Local Revenues
TOTAL REVENUES

Program Expenses
Instruction
Instruction-Related Services
Pupil Services
General Administration
Plant Services
Ancillary Services
Other Outgo

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

Total Percentage

Governmental Activities Change

2013 2012 2013-2012
493,568 522,492 -5.54%
487,590 405,055 20.38%
583,889 585,212 -0.23%
283,918 244,023 16.35%
1,848,965 1,756,782 5.25%
539,859 584,155 -7.57%
83,133 105,786 -21.41%
95,322 93,268 2.20%
466,967 512,767 -8.93%
50,412 13,231 281.01%
6,677 6,975 -4.27%
618,228 617,258 0.16%
1,860,698 1,933,440 -3.76%
$ (11,733) % (176,658) -93.36%

Operating Grants
and Contribution
27%

Local Revenue
15%

Total Revenues $1,848,965

Revenue Limit
26%

E Revenue Limit
# Federal & State Aide
% Local Revenue

E Operating Grants and
Contribution

Federal & State
Aide
32%




Total Expenses $1,860,698 ® Instruction

B Instruction-Related Services

Other Outgo Instruction # Pupil Services
339% 29%

B General Administration
g Plant Services
# Ancillary Services

# Other Outgo

Ancillary Sefvices @ wy
04 % Instruction-Related
Services

5%

Pupil Services
Plant Services 5%

|
3% Genera

Administration
25%

Governmental Activities

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the County Office’s functions as well as each function’s net cost
(total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what
was funded by charges for services, operating grants and capital grants and contributions.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,860,698.

The amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes was $66,416.

Some of the costs were paid directly from grants and contributions $493,568.

Table 3
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2013 2012 2013 2012

Instruction $ 539,859 $ 584,155 $ 369,292 $ 395,614
Instruction-Related Service 83,133 105,786 55,835 70,227
Pupil Services 95,322 93,268 62,703 60,792
Ancillary Services 6,677 6,975 4,392 4 546
General Administration 466,967 512,767 219,585 335,701
Plant Services 50,412 13,231 37,095 2,549
Other Outgo 618,228 617,258 618,228 541,519
TOTAL $ 1,860,698 $ 1,933,440 $ 1,367,130 $ 1,410,948

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FUNDS

The overall financial performance of the County Office as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds
as well. As the County Office completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund

8



balance of $1,974,523, which is above last year's ending fund balance of $1,902,698, this change was
due to a combination of increase revenue and decrease cost.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the County Office revises its annual budget to reflect unexpected changes
in revenues and expenditures. The final amendment to the budget was approved in August 2013. A
schedule of the County Office's original and final budget amounts compared with actual revenues and
expenses is provided in the supplemental section of the audited financial report.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2013, the County Office had invested $362,601 in a broad range of capital assets including
land, buildings and improvements, equipment and vehicles. More detailed information about the County
Office’s capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Table 4

Capital Assets
Total Percentage

Governmental Activities Change
2013 2012 2013-2012
Buildings & Improvements $ 501,900 $ 501,900 0.00%
Machinery and Equipment 208,001 208,001 0.00%
Totals at Historical Cost 709,901 709,901 0.00%
Total Accumulated Depreciation (347,300) (300,826) 15.45%
NET CAPITAL ASSETS $ 362,601 $ 409,075 -11.36%

The County Office did not establish a 2013-2014 budget for capital projects.

Long-Term Debt

At year end, the County Office had 55,647 in debt, consisting of compensated absences and other post
employment benefits as shown in Table 5. The County Office added $13,853 in debt during the fiscal
year. More detailed information about the County Office’s debt is presented in the notes to the financial

statements.

Table 5

Long-Term Debt
Total Percentage

Governmental Activities Change
2013 2012 2013-2012
Compensated Absences $ 11,842 $ 12,108 -2.20%
Post Employment Benefits 43,805 29,686 47.56%
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT $ 55,647 $ 41,794 33.15%




ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the County Office was aware of
several circumstances that could affect its future financial health:

Q The uncertainty of federal and state funding can have a profound impact on the financial health
of the County Office. Although no changes are currently anticipated, the federal and the state
governments could implement budget cuts.

O The continuing increases in premiums for health care insurance and worker's compensation
could have a significant effect on the future financial health of the County Office. The 2013
premium for health insurance increased by 8% over the 2012 premium. The worker’s
compensation rate increased by 2.7% over the 2012 rate. Health care premiums are predicted
to continue to increase into the foreseeable future.

0 The budget assumptions used to prepare the budget for 2014 included a 1.565% cost of fiving
allowance (COLA).

CONTACTING THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the County Office’s finances and to demonstrate the County Office’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, or need additional
financial information, contact:

Rose Asquith

Sierra County Office Of Education
Post Office Box 955

109 Beckwith Road

Loyalton, CA 96118

10



Basic Financial Statements



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash in Revolving Fund
Accounts Receivable
Due from Grantor Governments
Capital Assets:

Buildings, Ne!

Equipment, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Due to Grantor Governments
Unearned Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:

Federal and State Programs
Unrestricted
Totaiiet

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

11

Governmental
Activities

$ 1,898,402
500

2,000

378,119

297,315
65,286

2,641,622

214,390
59,574
30,534

43,805
11,842
360,145

362,601

12,091

1,906,785

EXHIBIT A-1



EXHIBIT A-2

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Program Changes in
Revenues Net Position
Operating
Grants and Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Contributions Activities
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Government Activities:
Instruction $ 539,959 $ 170,667 $ (369,292)
Instruction-Related Services 83,133 27,298 (55,835)
Pupil Services 95,322 32,619 (62,703)
Ancillary Services 6,677 2,285 (4,392)
General Administration 466,967 247,382 (219,585)
Plant Services 50,412 13,317 (37,095)
Other Outgo 618,228 {(618,228)
Total Governmental Activities 1,860,698 493,568 (1,367,130)
Total Primary Government $ 1,860,698 $ 493,568 (1,367,130)
General Revenues:
Revenue Limit Sources 487,590
Federal Revenues 418,728
State Revenues 165,161
Local Revenues 283,918
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers 1,355,397
Change in Net Position (11,733)
Net Position - Beginning 2,269,976
Prior Period Adjustment 23,234
N&: tio ZRBLATT

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

12



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

General
Fund

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury $ 1,898,402
Cash in Revolving Fund 500
Accounts Receivable 2,000
Due from Grantor Governments 378,119

ak

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 214,390
Due to Grantor Governments 59,574
Unearned Revenue 30,534
Total Liabilities 304,498

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable Fund Balances:

Revolving Cash 500
Restricted Fund Balances 12,091
Assigned Fund Balances 44,458
Unassigned:

Reserve for Economic Uncertainty 144,237

Other Unassigned 1,773,237

Total Fund Balance 1,974,523

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

13

EXHIBIT A-3



EXHIBIT A-4

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet $ 1,974,523

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 362,601
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. (11,842)
Other Post-Employment Benefits which are not due and payable in the current period are not reported (43,805)
in the funds.
Net position of governmental activities - Statement of Net Position $ 2,281,477

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

14



EXHIBIT A-5

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

General
Fund
Revenues:
Revenue Limit Sources:
State Apportionments $ 421,174
Local Sources 66,416
Federal Revenue 559,883
Other State Revenue 517,574
Other Local Revenue 283,918
Total Revenues 1,848,965
Expenditures:
Instruction 498,745
Instruction - Related Services 79,773
Pupil Services 95,322
Ancillary Services 6,677
General Administration 462,710
Plant Services 38,916
Other Outgo 618,228
Total Expenditures 1,800,371
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 48,594
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 63,176
Transfers Out (63,176)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance 48,594
Fund Balance, July 1 1,902,695

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of this statement.

15



EXHIBIT A-6

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 48,594

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
("SOA") are different because:

The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (46,474)

Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paidin

the funds. 266

Other Post-Employment benefits are reported as the amount entered in the SOA but as the

amount pain in the funds. (14,119)
Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ (11,733)

The accompanying notes are an integra!l part of this statement.

16



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Sierra County Office of Education (County Office of Education) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance
with the policies and procedures of the Department of Education's "California School Accounting Manual.” The
accounting policies of the County Office of Education conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

1.

Reporting Entity

The County Office of Education's combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The
County Office of Education evaluated whether any other entity should be included in these financial statements.
The criteria for including organizations as component units within the County Office of Education's reporting
entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," include whether:

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name)

- the County Office of Education holds the corporate powers of the organization

- the County Office of Education appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

- the County Office of Education is able to impose its will on the organization

- the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the County Office of Education
- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the County Office of Education

The County Office of Education also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources
are used principally to provide support to the County Office of Education to determine if its omission from the
reporting entity would result in financial statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No.
14 requires inclusion of such an organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or
held by the organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the County Office of Education,
its component units or its constituents; and 2) The County Office of Education or its component units is entitled
to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the
organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the County Office of Education.

Based on these criteria, the County Office of Education has no component units. Additionally, the County Office
of Education is not a component unit of any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include the
financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the County Office of Education's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. The County Office of Education does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities.
Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by
the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County Office of
Education's funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund
financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

17



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The County Office of Education reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County Office of Education's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the County Office of Education except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. They are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when
the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the County Office of Education gives
(or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes,
grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which
the taxes are received. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The County Office of Education considers all revenues
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after
year-end. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and
revenues received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous
revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until
actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and
available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general iong-term debt and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the County Office of Education incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and
unrestricted resources may be used, it is the County Office of Education's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources.

3. Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which
commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All

encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.

4.  Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds. By state iaw, the County Office of Education's governing board must adopt a final budget
no later than July 1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The County
Office of Education's governing board satisfied these requirements.

These budgets are revised by the County Office of Education's governing board and County superintendent

during the year to give consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures. It is the final revised budget
that is presented in the financial statements.

18



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Formal budgetary integration was used as a management contro! device during the year for all budgeted funds.
The County Office of Education employs budget control by minor object and by individual appropriation
accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code.

5.  Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

a.

Deposits and Investments

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to $250,000 by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the County Office of Education maintains substantially
all its cash in the Sierra County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the
county and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value.
Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds, except for the Tax Override Funds, in which
interest earned is credited to the general fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all
funds in the pool.

The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section
53648 et seq. The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository insurance or are
collateralized.

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with Sierra County Treasury was not
available.

Stores Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at
the time individual inventory items are purchased. These inventories are immaterial and have been
omitted from these statements.

The County Office of Education has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for
prepaid items either when purchased or during the benefiting period. The County Office of Education
has chosen to report the expenditure during the benefiting period.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization
threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 2-15
Office Equipment 3-15
Computer Equipment 3-15

19



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

d. Receivable and Payable Balances

The County Office of Education believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is
provided in the financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation.
Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

e. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the County Office of
Education. The current portion of the liabilities is recognized in the General Fund at year end.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the County Office of Education. The
County Office of Education's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since
such benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable
service period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires.

f. Earned Revenue

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the extent that
qualified expenditures have been incurred. Earned revenue is recorded to the extent cash received on specific
projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures.

g. [Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues
and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate  benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single
"Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and
payables are netted and presented as a single “Internal Balances” line of the government-wide
statement of net assets.

h. Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or
before August 31. The Counties of Sierra and Plumas bill and collect the taxes for the County Office of
Education.

i. Equity Classifications

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as
notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are consirained by external parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

20



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of
a formal action by the County Office’'s governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action.
Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the
governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget.
Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do
not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the County Office intends to use for a specific purpose, but
that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the
governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority. Specific
amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service or
permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's
primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is
for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the County Office itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for
any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental
funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific
purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the County Office considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County Office
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally
unassigned funds

Consistent with the Criteria and Standards for fiscal solvency adopted by the State Board of
Equalization, the County Office of Education maintains a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties to
safegaurd the County Office of Education's financial stablility. The minimum recommended reserve for
a County Office of Education of this size is a minimum of three percent of budgeted general fund
expenditures and other financing uses. The County Office of Education's policy is to maintain the
reserve at 10%. If the fund balance drops below 5%, it shall be recovered at a rate of at least
1% annually.

Government-Wide Financial Statementis

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position consists of net assets with restrictions placed on the use either by external groups
such as contributors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments, or law through constitutional

provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position consists of ail other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted” or
"net investment in capital assets."

i Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accpeted in

the United States of America requires the use of management's estimates. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

21



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

B.

C.

k.  Subsequent Event Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 5, 2013, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Compliance and Accountability

1.

Finance-Related Lega! and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” violations of finance-
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken o address such violations:

Violation Action Taken
None reported Not applicable

Deficit Fund Batance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deficits:

Deficit
Fund Name Amount Remarks
None reported Not applicable  Not applicable

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the Office of Education had no expenditures in excess of appropriations.

Cash and Investments

Cash in County Treasury:

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the County Office of Education maintains substantially ail of
its cash in the Sierra County Treasury as part of the common investment pool ($15,791,485 as of June 30,
2013). The fair value of the County Office of Education's portion of this pool as of that date, as provided by the
pool sponsor, was $1,898,402. Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment
portfolios are available from the County Treasurer.

Cash on Hand. in Banks, and in Revolving Fund

Cash balances in the revolving fund ($500) as of June 30, 2013 are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal
Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured or collateralized.

Investment Accounting Policy

The County Office of Education is required by GASB Statement No. 31 to disciose its policy for determining
which investments, if any, are reported at amortized cost. The County Office of Education’s general policy is to
report money market investments and short-term participating interest-eaming investment contracts at amortized
cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if
the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or
by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal
contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term “"shortterm” refers to investments which have a
remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating” means that the investment's
value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of
nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts.

22



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The County Office of Education's investments in external investment pools are reported at an amount
determined by the fair value per share of the pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which
case they are reported at share value. A 2a7-lke pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does,
operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.

E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activities:
Capital assels being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements $ 501,900 $ $ $ 501,900
Equipment 208,001 208,001
Total capital assets being depreciated 709,901 709,901
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements (193,089) (11,496) (204,585)
Eguipment (107,737) (34,978) (142,715)
Total accumulated depreciation (300,826) (46,474) (347,300)
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 409,075 $ (46,474) $ $ 362,601
Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
Instruction $ 27,361
Instruction-Related Services 3,360
General Administration 4,257
Plant Services 11,496
$ 46,474

F. Interfund Balances and Activites
1. Due To and From Other Funds
The Office of Education had no due to or due from balances at June 30, 2013.
2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Transfers From Transfers To Amount Reason
Forest Reserve Fund General Fund $ 63,176 Transfer of resources to other
funds.
Total $ 63,176

G. Long-Term Obligations
1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended
June 30, 2013, are as follows:

23



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Compensated absences $ 12,108 § $ 266 $ 11,842
Other Post Employment Ben. 29,686 14,119 43,805
Total governmental activities  $ 41794 $ 14,119 § 266 $ 55,647 $

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability Activity Type Fund
Compensated absences Governmental ~ General
Other Post Employment Ben.  Governmental  General

H. Joint Ventures (Joint Powers Agreements)

The County Office participates in two Joint Powers Agreements (JPA's), the Tri-Counties Schools Insurance Group
and the Northeastern JPA. The insurance groups arrange for and provide property, liability, health and worker's
compensation insurance for their members. The County Office pays premiums commensurate with the level of
coverage requested. These are partial self-insurance programs.

An executive committee consisting of representatives from each member's County Office/District  governs the
JPA's. The governing boards control the operations of their JPA's independent of any influence by the County
Office beyond the County Office's representation on the governing boards.

The JPA's are independently accountable for their fiscal matters. The insurance groups maintain their own
accounting records. The budget is not subject to any approval other than that of the executive committee. The
relationship between the County Office and the JPA's is such that the JPA's are not component units of the County
Office for financial reporting purposes.

Condensed financial information for the JPA's for June 30, 2013 was not available as of our report date.

l. Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of the
State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), and classified
employees are members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS).

PERS:

Plan Description

The County Office of Education contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit
pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state
statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 Q Street,
Sacramento, California 95811.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 6% to 7% of their salary and the County Office of Education is
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining
the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for

24



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

fiscal year 2012-13 was 11.414% of annua! payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are
established by state statute. The County Office of Education's contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $47,758, $44,448 and $27,680, respectively, and equal 100% of the required
contributions for each year.

STRS:

Plan Description

The County Office of Education contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The plan
provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state
statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalSTRS, 100
Waterfront Place, West Sacramento, California 95605.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8% of their salary and the County Office of Education is required to
contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are
those adopted by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year
2012-13 was 8.25% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state
statute. The County Office of Education's contributions to STRS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and
2011 were $24,215, $26,056 and $25,895, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year.
The amount contributed by the State on behalf of the County Office of Education was $13,348.

J.  Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The County Office of Education is currently not involved in litigation. In the opinion of management and legal
counsel, the disposition of all litigation pending will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The County Office of Education has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies. Althcugh such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the
grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material.

K. Other Post Employment Benefits

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, the Office of Education implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 45 Accounting and Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, for certain
postemployment health care benefits provided by the Office of Education. The requirements of this Statement were
implemented prospectively, and accordingly, for financial reporting purposes, no liability is reported for the
postemployment health care and life insurance benefits liability at the date of transition. The recognition of the liability
accumulated from prior years will be phased in over 30 years.

Plan Description and Eligibility Requirements

The Office of Education provides certain postretirement heaithcare benefits, as established by board policy, to eligible
employees who retire from the District on or after attaining age 55 with at least 25 years of service including at least 5
years of service with the County Office of Education.

25



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Confidential and classified employees may elect in writing to take advantage of their choice of 1 of the following offers:
A. 1 year of retiree benefits (at the Tiered Rate) for medical, dental, and vision plans for the retiree, spouse and family, or
B. $12,604.50 for the term of 1 year.

Certificated employees may elect in writing to take advantage of their choice of 1 of the following offers:

A. 3 years of retiree benefits (at the Tiered Rate) for medical, dental, and vision plans for the retiree, spouse and family,
capped at the employer dollar contribution in the year of the unit members final year of service, or

B. A lump sum dollar amount per year for 3 years set up at the dollar contribution per paragraph "a" above made by the
employer in the year of the unit members final year of service.

All contracts with Office of Education employees will be renegotiated periodically in the future, thus costs and benefits
are subject to change. Benefits and contribution requirements for the Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) plan are
established by various {abor agreements.

For the Office of Education, OPEB benefits are administered by County Office personnel. No separate financial statements
are issued.

The number of participants as of July 1, 2011, the effective date of the triennial OPEB valuation is 10 active
employees and 1 retiree for a total of 11 participants.

Funding Policy

The Office of Education currently pays for post employment healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Office of
Education is considering creating a Trust Fund to accumulate assets for future retiree obligations. Due to the
requirements of GASB No. 45, assets intended to fund future obligations are not considered to offset the unfunded
benefit obligation until the assets are transferred to an irrevocable trust designed to pay for future OPEB costs. Currently,
these financial statements assume that funding on a pay-as-you-go basis will continue.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and pian members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilites and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations. Significant actuarial methods and assumptions are as follows:

Plan Type Projected Unit Method

Actuarial Valuation Date July 1, 2011

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Projected Payroll
Remaining Amortization Period 26 Years

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 2.00%
Projected Salary Increases 1.00%
Healthcare Inflation Rate 5.00%

26



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligations

The following table shows the Office of Education's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to

the plan, and changes in the District's net OPEB obligation:

Description June 30, 2013
Normal Cost (service cost for one year) $ 19,952
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 7,778
Interest on Normal Cost and Amortization

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 27,730
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 594
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (1,247)
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 27,077
Contribution toward the OPEB Cost (Expense Reduction) (12,958)
Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation 14,119
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of the Year 29,686
Net OPEB Obligation, End of the Year $ 43,805

The Office of Education's annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the year ended

June 30, 2013 and the two preceding years are as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $ 21,054 $ 15,118 71.81% $ 14,925
June 30,2012 % 27,730 $ 12,969 46.77% $ 29,686
June 30,2013  $ 27,077 $ 12,958 47.86% $ 43,805

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The required schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value

of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial

benefits.

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2013 and the two preceding years are as follows:

accrued

liability  for

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability ALL Funded Covered Of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UALL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) b-a a/b (c) ((b-a)/c)
06/30/11 $ 161,436 161,436 630,633 25.60%
06/30/12 181,654 181,654 623,903 29.12%
06/30/13 181,654 181,654 624,404 29.09%

27



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

M.

N.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events in the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment and
termination, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and
the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Related Party Transactions

Sierra County Office of Education serves only the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District. As a
result, the two entities are housed in the same building and share a common adminstration, including  board
members, and share office space and personnel. For the year ended June 30, 2013, the District charged the County
Office $26,040 for one half of the board members' health benefits; $104,938 for the cost to operate the opportunity
program; $17,968 for the cost to operate career technical education classes, and $52,732 for business related
services. During the same period of time, the County Office charged the District $240,298 for business related
services.

Concentrations of Funding Risk

Due to the nature of the County Office’'s operating environment, the County Office is dependent on Federal and
State funding to maintain the current level of services to its members. A significant recession beginning in
December 2007 has created a climate of uncertainty for the Federal and State governments. As governmental
agencies look to balance budgets and improve cash flow, funding for the County Office’s programs may be at risk of
being restructured, reduced, or eliminated.

Prior Period Adjustment

After the Office of Education completed its Unaudited Actuals Financial Report for June 30, 2012, the Office of
Education discovered an understatement of ROP revenue for the year ended June 30, 2012. As a result of this discovery, the
beginning Net Position and Fund Balance will be restated as follows:

Net Position Fund Balance
As Originally Reported at June 30, 2012 $ 2,269,976 $ 1,902,695
Restatement for Underreported ROP Revenue 23,234 23,234
As Restated for June 30, 2012 $ 2,293,210 $ 1,925,929

28



Required Supplementary Information

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements.



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION EXHIBIT B-1
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues: :
Revenue Limit Sources:
State Apportionments $ 236,691 $ 422120 $ $ (946)
Local Sources 68,026 67,644 ) (1,228)
Federal Revenue 243,953 606,733 (46,850)
Other State Revenue 532,221 504,201 13,373
Other Local Revenue 301,377 257,815 26,103
Total Revenues 1,382,268 1,858,513 (9,548)
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated Salaries 295,341 301,991 8,093
Classified Salaries 335,317 351,188 14,969
Employee Benefits 325,317 320,109 12,982
Books And Supplies 29,357 31,563 10,122
Services And Other Operating Expenditures 363,046 364,902 141,444
Other Outgo 299,795 661,259 43,031
Total Expenditures 1,648,173 2,031,012 230,641
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (265,905) (172,499) 221,093
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 8,465 63,176
Transfers Out (8,465) (63,176)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance (265,905) (172,499) 221,093
Fund Balance, July 1 1,902,695
Prior Period Adjustment

23,23

Fi

4
2

29



Other Supplementary Information

This section includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financial statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

JUNE 30, 2013

The Sierra County Office of Education was established in 1956, and operates in an area of approximately
1,600 square miles in Plumas and Sierra Counties. There were no changes in the area of operation during
the year. The County Office provides Special Education, Counseling, County School and Opportunity Schoo!
services. Sierra County has one school district, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District.

Governing Board

Term and Term Expiration

Name Office
Allen Wright President
Sharon Dryden Vice President
Tim Driscoll Member
Mike Moore Member
Patricia Hall Clerk

Administration

Stan Hardeman
Superintendent

Rose Asquith
Business Manager

30

4 years expiring December, 2014
4 years expiring December, 2014
4 years expiring December, 2016
4 years expiring December, 2014

4 years expiring December, 2016



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION TABLE C-1
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Second Period Report Annual Report
Original Revised Original Revised

Elementary:

County School Tuition 10.44 10.44 10.50 10.50

Opportunity Schools 1.82 1.82 2.19 2.19
Elementary totals 12.26 12.26 12.69 12.69
High School:

County School Tuition 5.60 5.60 5.64 5.64

Opportunity Schools 0.05 0.05 0.22 0.22
High School totals 5.65 5.65 5.86 5.86
ADA totals 17.91 17.91 18.55 18.55

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the County Office of
Education. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which
apportionments of state funds are made to County Offices. This schedule provides information regarding the
attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

31



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION TABLE C-2
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Number of
1982-83 1982-83 1986-87 1986-87 2012-13 Days
Actual Adjusted & Minutes Adjusted & Actual Traditional
Grade Level Minutes Reduced Reguirement Reduced Minutes Calendar Status
Kindergarten N/A N/A 36,000 35,000 40,290 180 In Compliance
Grade 1 N/A N/A 50,400 49,000 53,290 180 In Compliance
Grade 2 N/A N/A 50,400 49,000 53,290 180 In Compliance
Grade 3 N/A N/A 50,400 49,000 53,290 180 In Compliance
Grade 4 N/A N/A 54,000 52,500 57,580 180 In Compliance
Grade 5 N/A N/A 54,000 52,500 57,580 180 In Compliance
Grade 6 N/A N/A 54,000 52,500 57,580 180 In Compliance
Grade 7 N/A N/A 54,000 52,500 67,200 180 In Compliance
Grade 8 N/A N/A 54,000 52,500 67,200 180 In Compliance
Grade 9 N/A N/A 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 In Compliance
Grade 10 N/A N/A 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 In Compliance
Grade 11 N/A N/A 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 In Compliance
Grade 12 N/A N/A 64,800 63,000 67,200 180 In Compliance

Offices of Education must maintain their instructional minutes at either the 1982-83 actual minutes or the 1986-87
requirements, whichever is greater, as required by Education Code Section 46201.

32



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION TABLE C-3
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budget
2014

General Fund (see note 1) 2013 2012 2011
Revenues and other financial sources $ 1,304,819 $ 1,812,141 $ 1917612 § 2,713,924
Expenditures 1,655,213 1,800,371 1,900,274 1,995,716
Other uses and transfers out 63,176 160,830 612,432
Total outgo 1,655,213 1,863,547 2,061,104 2,608,148
Change in fund balance (deficit) (350,394) 48,594 (143,492) 105,776
Ending fund balance $ 1,624,129 $ 1,974,523 $ 1,902,695 $ 2,046,187
Available reserves (see note 2) $ 1,646,538 $ 1,917,474  § 1,858,238 $ 1,925,970
Available reserves as a percentage

of total outgo 93.4% 102.9% 90.2% 73.8%
Total long-term debt $ 69,766 $ 55,647 % 41,794 % 26,464
Average daily attendance at P-2 18 18 17 18

This schedule discloses the county office's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget
information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the county office's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

The Office of Education’s reserves remain above guidelines established by the State Department of
Education. However, due to the State of California's economic problems, the Office of Education should be
diligent in maintaining its reserves.

NOTES:
1 Budget 2014 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit.
o Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances and all funds reserved for economic uncertainties
contained within the General Fund.
3 On behalf payments have been excluded from the calculation of available reserves.

33



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION TABLE C-4
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET

REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

All fund balance listed in the Office of Education's annual financial report reconcile to the fund balances in the
audited financial statements.

34



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION TABLE C-5
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

No charter schools are chartered by Sierra County Office of Education.

included In
Charter Schoois Audit?
None N/A

35



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION TABLE C-6
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Program:

Small Rural School Achievement Program 84.358 N/A $ 6,300
Passed Through State Department of Education:

Special Education * 84.027 13379 101,607

Special Education Mental Health * 84.027A 14468 6,021

Special Education Preschool Local * 84.027A 13682 7,322

Special Education Preschool * 84.173 13430 19,263

Special Education Pre K Staff Development * 84.173A 13431 910
Total Passed Through State Department of Education 135,123
Passed Through State Department of Education:

Title | - Basic Support * 84.010 14416 6,663
Total U. S. Department of Education 148,086

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Counties of Plumas and Sierra, California:

Forest Reserve * 10.665 N/A 421,173
Total U. S. Departm
TT L

* Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

36



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Sierra
County Office of Education and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial

statements.

37



Other Independent Auditor's Reports



Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financigl Statements
Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Board of Trustees
Sierra County Office of Education
Sierraville, California 96126

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sierra County Office of
Education, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise Sierra County Office of Education's basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated October 5, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sierra County Office of
Education's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sierra County Office of Education's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sierra County Office of
Education's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant
deficiences.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider
the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1
to 2013-2 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2013-1 to 2013-2 to be significant deficiencies.

38



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sierra County Office of Education's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Sierra County Office of Education’s Response to Findings

Sierra County Office of Education's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Sierra County Office of Education's response
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

/ Aa.

SingletopAuman PC
Susanville, CA
October 5, 2013

39



PeSingletonAumanec

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E Singleton CPA, MSAcc
. ’ ,

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control OQver Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Board of Trustees
Sierra County Office of Education
Sierraville, California 96126

Members of the Board of Trustees:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sierra County Office of Education’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Sierra County Office of Education's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2013. Sierra County Office of Education’'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Sierra County Office of Education's
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sierra County
Office of Education's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sierra County Office of Education’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Sierra County Office of Education complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Susanville: Chester:
1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130 sa@sa-cpas.com PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 WWWw.sa-cpas.com 530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282

40



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Sierra County Office of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. in planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Sierra County Office of Education's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal contro! over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Sierra County Office of Education's internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiences and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant
deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1 to
2013-2 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1 t0 2013-2 1o be
significant deficiencies.

Sierra County Office of Education's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our
audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Sierra County Office of
Education's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
interna! control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

W, P
SingletéhAuman PC

Susanville, CA
October 5, 2013

41



PeSingletonAumanec

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS Clay E. Singleton, CPA, MSAcc
. , CPA,

In ndent Auditor's R rt on mplian

Board of Trustees
Sierra County Office of Education
Sierraville, California 96126

Members of the Board of Trustees:
Report on State Compliance

We have audited the district's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13,
published by the California Education Audit Appeals Panel that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the district's state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Management's Responsibility for State Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the
State's audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education
Agencies 2012-13 published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the Unived States; and the State's audit guide Standards and Procedures for Audits ol
California K-12 Local —Education Agencies 2012-13 published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel.
Those standards and audit guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on the state programs noted below. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the district's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the district's compliance with those requirements.

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine
the district's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures In Procedures
Description Audit Guide Performed
Attendance Accounting:
Attendance Reporting 6 Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments 3 Yes
Kindergarten Continuance 3 N/A
Independent Study 23 N/A
Continuation Education 10 N/A
Susanville: Chester:

1740 Main Street, Suite A, Susanville, CA 96130

530.257.1040 Fax: 530.257.8876 www.sa-cpas.com

sa@sa-cpas.com

42

PO Box 795, Chester, CA 96020
530.258.2272 Fax: 530.258.2282



Instructional Time:

School Districts 6 N/A
County Offices of Education 3 Yes
Instructional Materials, General Requirements 8 Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers 1 N/A
Classroom Teacher Salaries 1 N/A
Early Retirement Incentive 4 N/A
GANN Limit Calculation 1 Yes
School Accountability Report Card 3 Yes
Juvenile Court Schools 8 N/A
Class Size Reduction (Including Charter Schools):
General Requirements 7 N/A
Option One 3 N/A
Option Two 4 N/A
Only One School Serving Grades K-3 4 N/A
After School Education and Safety Program:
General Requirements : 4 N/A
After School 5 N/A
Before School 6 N/A
Charter Schools
Contemporaneous Records of Attendance 1 N/A
Mode of Instruction 1 N/A
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study 15 N/A
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based instruction 3 N/A
Annua! Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based 4 N/A

The term "N/A" is used above to mean either the County Office did not offer the program during the current fiscal
year or the program applies to a different type of local education agency.

Opinion on State Compliance
In our opinion, Sierra County Office of Education complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above

for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Respectfully submitted,

%M /C. C.
/
Singlet¢hAuman PC

Susanville, CA
October 5, 2013

43



Findings and Recommendations Section



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1.  Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal! control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? X  Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes
2. Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? X  Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-1337 X  Yes
ldentification of major programs:
CEDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.665 Forest Reserve
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
3. State Awards
internal control over state programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for state programs: Unqualified

44

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

No

No

No

None Reported



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

B. Yellow Book/Financial Statement Findings
Internal Control - Material Weakness
Finding 2013-1 Lack of Segregation of Duties (CDDC#30000)

Criteria upon which audit finding is based (Legal Citation
Yellow Book paragraphs 5.10 - 5.14 and Appendix I, SAS No. 122.

Finding (Condition
An inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Amount of Questioned costs, How Computed and Prevalence
None.

Effect
The Office of Education has exposure to risk of financial statement misstatement and the potential risk of

fraud.

Cause

Due to the number of personnel assigned to duties that involve access to the general ledger and other
accounting records and who also have custody of and responsibility for handling cash and other assets,
an inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Recommendation
We recommend that the Office of Education employees and Board maintain diligence for the potential risks

of not having an adequate segregation of duties.

County Office of Education's Response
The Office of Education concurs with this finding.

45



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

B. Yellow Book/Financial Statement Findings (Continued)
Internal Control - Material Weakness
Finding 2013-2 Financial Reporting (CDDC#30000)
Criteria upon which audit finding is based (Legal Citation}
In accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards No. 122 (SAS 122), the Office of Education is

responsible for preparing complete and accurate financial statements and footnote disclosures in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Finding (Condition

Similar to many other small local educational agencies, the Office of Education does not have policies and
prodedures in place to ensure that complete and accurate financial statements, MD&A and footnote
disclosures are prepared in accordance with GAAP prior to the annual audit. Management relies upon
the auditor to recommend footnote disclosures for the financial statements and to prepare adjusting
journal entries for approval in order to report financial information in accordance with GAAP.

Amount of Questioned Costs, How Computed and Prevalence
None.

Effect
There is a risk that a material financial statement misstatement may exist and not be prevented or detected

by the Office of Education’s system of internal control.

Cause
This condition has always existed at the Office of Education, and is being reported in accordance with

SAS 122.

Recommendation
We recommend that the Office of Education consider the cost benefit of hiring an accountant familiar with
GAAP or contracting with an independent CPA firm to compile financial statements in conformity with

GAAP.

County Office of Education's Response
The Office of Education has determined that the costs of correcting this control weakness outweigh the
benefits to be received. The Office of Education will continue to rely on the independent auditor to
prepare its annual financial statements.

46



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

C. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None.

D. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Internal Control - Material Weakness
See Yellow Book Findings 2013-1 and 2013-2. Findings also relate to the major programs listed below:

Program Name: Forest Reserve

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture

Award Year: 2012-2013

Catalog Number: 10.665

Name of Pass-Through Entity: Counties of Plumas and Sierra, California

internal Control - Other Significant Deficiencies Not Material Weaknesses
None.

Material Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations
None.

Non-Material Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations
None.

47



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Management's Explanation
Finding/Recommendation Current Status if Not Implemented

Finding 2012-1
Lack of Segregation of Duties Not Implemented, See
Current Year Finding 2013-1

Finding 2012-2
Financial Reporting Not Implemented, See
Current Year Finding 2013-2

48



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Person Monitoring Corrective Action Plan
County Superintendent, Dr. Merrill Grant

Finding 2013-1 Lack of Segregation of Duties (CDDC#30000)

Finding (Condition)
Due to the number of employees an inadequate segregation of duties exists.

Corrective Action Planned

The County Office of Education accepts the responsibility for the internal controls for safegaurding the
County Office assets including federal assets. The County Office believes that being aware of this
weakness will insure that existing employees and Board members will maintain diligence to potential
risks of not having adequate segregation of duties.

To ensure that appropriate internal controls are established and implemented to safegaurd against
potential risks, additional policies and procedures have been established to mitigate the risk. The
following is an outline of the steps that have taken place:

I. Board policy has been established and adopted to direct financial staff to prepare corrective action
plans for audit findings.

ll. Board policy has been established and adopted for follow up reports certifying implementation of
corrective action plan.

. “Accounting Systems Flow Chart" establishing additional checks and reviews for all cash
transactions to mitigate potential risk for fraud has been developed and implemented.

Expected Completion Date
Ongoing.

Finding 2013-2 Financial Reporting (CDDC#30000)

Finding (Condition)
The County Office is responsible for preparing complete and accurate financial statements, footnote
disclosures, and management's discussion and analysis in accordance with Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Corrective Action Planned
The County Office has determined that the costs of correcting this control weakness outweigh the

benefits to be received and will continue to rely on the independent auditor to prepare its annual
financial statements.

However, the County Office will strive to remain knowledgeable and up to date on accounting policies
and principles through professional development and direct links to appropriate resources.
The County Office will seek assistance from outside resources if and where needed.

Expected Completion Date
Ongoing.

49



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Tobaeco-Free Schools

BP 35133
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Board of Education recognizes that the health hazards associated with smoking and the use
of tobacco products, including the breathing of second-hand smoke, are inconsistent with its goal
to provide a healthy environment for students and staff.

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs)
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

The Board prohibits the use of tobacco products at any time in district-owned or leased
buildings, on district property, and in district vehicles. (Health and Safety Code 104420; Labor
Code 6404.5; 20 USC 6083)

This prohibition applies to all employees, students, and visitors at any school-sponsored
instructional program, activity, or athletic event held on or off district property. Any written
joint use agreement governing community use of district facilities or grounds shall include notice
of the district's tobacco-free schools policy and consequences for violations of the policy.

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)
(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)

Prohibited products include any product containing tobacco or nicotine, including, but not
limited to, cigarettes, cigars, miniature cigars, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew, clove cigarettes,
betel, and nicotine delivery systems, deviees-such as electronic cigarettes, electronic hookahs,
and other vapor emitting devices, with or without nicotine content, that mimic the use of
tobacco products any time. Exceptions may be made for the use or possession of prescription
nicotine products.

Smoking or use of any tobacco-related products and disposal of any tobacco-related waste are
prohibited within 25 feet of any playground, except on a public sidewalk located within 25 feet
of the playground. (Health and Safety Code 104495)



Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

48900 Grounds for suspension/expulsion

48901 Prohibition against tobacco use by students

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

39002 Control of air pollution from nonvehicular sources

104350-104495 Tobacco use prevention, especially:

104495 Prohibition of smoking and tobacco waste on playgrounds

119405 Unlawful to sell or furnish electronic cigarettes to minors

LLABOR CODE

3300 Employer, definition

6304 Safe and healthful workplace

6404.5 Occupational safety and health; use of tobacco products

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6083 Nonsmoking policy for children's services

7100-7117 Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21

1140.1-1140.34 Unlawful sale of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco to minors
PERB RULINGS

Eureka Teachers Assn. v. Eureka City School District (1992) PERB Order #955 (16 PERC
23168)

CSEA #506 and Associated Teachers of Metropolitan Riverside v. Riverside Unified School
District (1989) PERB Order #750 (13 PERC 20147)

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

California Department of Education, Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Prevention:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at

California Department of Education, Tobacco-Free School District Certification:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at/tobaccofreecert.asp

California Department of Public Health, Tobacco Control:
http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco

Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board: http://www.dir.ca.gov/OSHSB/oshsb.html
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency: http://fwww.epa.gov

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: May 10, 2011
revised: January 14,2014



;GAMUT Online : Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD : Extracurricular And Cocurricular Ac... Page 1 of 4

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD | 6000 | BP 6145 Instruction
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

T'he Board of Education recognizes that extracurricular and cocurricular activities enrich the educational and
social development of students and enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools. The district
shall encourage and support student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities without
compromising the integrity and purpose of the educational program.

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

No extracurricular or cocurricular program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately on the basis
of any actual or perceived characteristic listed as a prohibited category of discrimination in state or federal
law, nor shall any student's participation in an extracurricular or cocurricular activity be required or refused
on those bases. Prerequisites for student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities shall be
limited to those that have been demonstrated to be essential to the success of the activity. (5 CCR 4925)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access)

Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination in the district's extracurricular or cocurricular programs or
activities shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Unless specifically authorized by law, no fee shall be charged to students for participation in extracurricular
and cocurricular activities related to the educational program, including materials or equipment related to the
activity.

{cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)
(cf. 3452 - Student Activity Funds)
Eligibility Requirements

To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 7 through 8 must
demonstrate weekly satisfactory academic progress including but not limited to:

1. Maintenance of a grade report that reflects no "F" or failing grade.

a. Students may practice with an "F" grade but are not allowed to participate in games, tournaments, or travel
with the team.

http://gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/467383/6 1/6/2014



GAMUT Online : Sierra County/ Sierra-Plumas Joint USD : Extracurricular And Cocurricular Ac... Page 2 of 4 )

b. Students who are ineligible three times in a season will be dropped from the team for the remainder of the
season.

To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 9 through 12
must demonstrate satisfactory educational progress in the previous grading period including but not limited
to: (Education Code 35160.5)

1. Maintenance of a minimum of 2.0 grade point average on a 4.0 scale with no "F" grade(s)

2. Maintenance of minimum progress toward meeting high school graduation requirements

3. Students must meet eligibility requirements as defined by California Interscholastic Federation (CIF)
(ef. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)

(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination)

The Superintendent or designee may grant ineligible students a probationary period not to exceed one
semester. Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required standards by the end of the
probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation. (Education Code 35160.5)

Any decision regarding the eligibility of any child in foster care or a child of an active duty military family
for extracurricular or cocurricular activities shall be made by the Superintendent or designee in accordance
with Education Code 48850 and 49701.

{cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(ctf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)

Pupils or adult education students who choose to engage in independent study are to have the same access to
existing services and resources as the other pupils or adult education students of the school in which the
independent study pupil or adult education student is enrolled; and pupils or adult education students who
choose to engage 1n independent study are to have equality of rights and privileges with the pupils or adult
education students of the district or county office of education who choose to continue in the regular
program. (5 CCR 11701.5)

Students who participate in more than one extra-curricular and/or co-curricular activity wili not be penalized
for reasonably selecting one individual activity, i.e., field trip, game, practice, over another. Student must
notify activity advisors and the site administrator in writing of the scheduling conflict and his/her decision at
least one week in advance of the conflicting date. When necessary, the site administrator shall mediate
between the student and staff involved in order to agree on a reasonable solution to the scheduling conflict.

Annual Policy Review
The Board shall annually review this policy and implementing regulations.

The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in extracurricular and
cocurricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious enough to warrant loss of this privilege.

Student Conduct at Extracurricular/Cocurricular Events

http://gamutoniine.net/DisplayPolicy/467383/6 1/6/2014



GAMUT Online : Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD : Extracurricular And Cocurricular Ac... Page 3 of 4

When attending or participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities on or off campus, district
students are subject to district policies and regulations relating to student conduct. Students who violate
district policies and regulations may be subject to discipline including, but not limited to, suspension,
expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, or denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular

ctivities in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation. When appropriate, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify local law enforcement.

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
Annual Policy Review
The Board shall annually review this policy and implementing regulations.
Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35145 Public meetings
- 35160.5 District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation
35179 Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia
35181 Students' responsibilities
48850 Participation of foster youth in extracurricular activities and interscholastic sports
4893(-48938 Student organizations
49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate
49700-49704 Education of children of military families
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
Article 9, Section 5 Common school system
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
350 Fees not permitted

4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial
assistance

5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

http://gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/467383/6 1/6/2014



GAMUT Online : Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD : Extracurricular And Cocurricular Ac... Page 4 of 4 ’

2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments

COURT DECISIONS

Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Student Fees Litigation Update, ELA Advisory, May 20, 2011

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Pupil Fees, Deposits, or Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 11-01, November 9, 2011
CALIFORNIA TASK FORCE REPORT TO THE LEGISLATURE

Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children: Preliminary Final Report, March 2009
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE

10-11 Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC),
July 20, 2010

WEB SITES

CSBA.: http://www.csba.org

California Association of Directors of Activities: http://www.cadal.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California

revised: October 9, 2007

revised: Augu.st 14,2012

revised: October 9, 2012

http://gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/467383/6 1/6/2014



GAMUT Online : Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD : Extracurricular And Cocurricular Ac... Page 1 of 2

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD | 6000 | AR 6145 Instruction
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
~ Definitions

For purposes of applying eligibility criteria for student participation, extracurricular and cocurricular
activities shall be defined as follows: (Education Code 35160.5)

t. Extracurricular activities are not part of the regular school curriculum, are not graded, do not offer credit,
do not take place during classroom time, and have all of the following characteristics:

a. The program is supervised or financed by the school district.

b. Students participating in the program represent the school district.

¢. Students exercise some degree of freedom in the selection, planning, or control of the program.

d. The program includes both preparation for performance and performance before an audience or spectators.
2. Cocurricular activities are programs that may be associated with the curriculum in a regular classroom.

An activity is not an extracurricular or cocurricular activity if either of the following conditions applies:
(Education Code 35160.5)

1. 1t is a teacher-graded or required program or activity for a course which satisfies the entrance requirements
for admission to the California State University or the University of California.

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

2. It is a program that has as its primary goal the improvement of academic or educational achievement of
students.

Eligibility Requirements
Grades 7-8

The grade point average (GPA) used to determine eligibility shall be based on the grades entered into the
district's attendance/grading program on a designated day of every school week, i.e., Tuesday.

Grades 9-12

The grade point average (GPA) used to determine eligibility for extracurricular and cocurricular activities
shall be based on grades of the last previous grading period during which the student attended class at least a
majority of the time. If a student was not in attendance for all, or a majority of, the grading period due to
absences excused by the school for reasons such as serious illness or injury, approved travel, or work, the
GPA used to determine eligibility shall be the grading period immediately prior to the excluded grading
period(s). (Education Code 35160.5)

_ (cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/467384/6 1/6/2014



GAMUT Online : Sierra County/ Sierra-Plumas Joint USD : Extracurricular And Cocurricular Ac... Page 2 of 2

When a student becomes ineligible to participate in extracurticular or cocurricular activities in the upcoming
grading period, or when he/she is subject to probation, the principal or designee shall provide written notice
to the student and his/her parent/guardian,

Supervision

All extracurricular activities conducted under the name or auspices of a district school or any class or
organization of the school, regardless of where the activities are held, shall be under the direct supervision of
certificated employees. (5 CCR 5531)

Any noncertificated person working with students in a district-sponsored extracurricular student activity
program shall possess an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing or shall have cleared a Department of Justice and Federal Burcau of Investigation criminal
background check prior to beginning his/her duties, in accordance with BP 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary
Athletic Team Coaches. (Education Code 49024)

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

(ctf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches)
(cf. 4212.5 - Criminal Record Check)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California

revised: October 9, 2007

revised: August 14, 2012‘

revised: October 9, 2012

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/467384/6 1/6/2014



	Agenda_SCOE.pdf
	scoedec2013rep.pdf
	Disc Statement.pdf
	12-10-13 SCOE MINUTES.pdf
	scoeDEC13chks.pdf
	Agreements.pdf
	1_001.pdf
	2_001.pdf
	3_001.pdf
	4_001.pdf
	5_001.pdf
	6_001.pdf

	COE_Singleton Letter.pdf
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13.pdf
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 2
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 3
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 4
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 5
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 6
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 7
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 8
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 9
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 10
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 11
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 12
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 13
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 14
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 15
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 16
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 17
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 18
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 19
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 20
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 21
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 22
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 23
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 24
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 25
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 26
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 27
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 28
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 29
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 30
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 31
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 32
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 33
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 34
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 35
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 36
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 37
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 38
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 39
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 40
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 41
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 42
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 43
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 44
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 45
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 46
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 47
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 48
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 49
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 50
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 51
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 52
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 53
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 54
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 55
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 56
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 57
	SierraCountyOfficeOfEducationRpt13: Page 58


	BP3513.3.pdf
	Board Policy 6145.pdf

